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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of Welspun Global Brands Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Welspun Global Brands Limited ("the
Company”}, which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2021, the Statement of Profit and
l.oss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as
amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2021, its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in
equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the 'Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section
of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained Is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Other Information

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual report, but does not include the standalone
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information Is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material

misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
in this regard.
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Respensibility of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance inciuding other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, inciuding the Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud ar error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters refated to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resuiting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intenticnal omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

+ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
inancial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness
such controls.
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Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and

other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’'s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in
the "Annexure 1" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit:

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.:

(¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

{(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards

specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended.;

(e} On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2021
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;
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(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these

financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in "Annexure 2” to this report:

(@) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2021 has been

paid / provided by the Company ta its directors in accordance with the provisions of section
197 read with Schedule V to the Act;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its financial statements - Refer Note 25 and 30 to the financial statements;

ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable |losses:

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

per Anil Jobanputra

Partner

Membership Number: 110759
UDIN: 21110759AAAACHS027
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: May 13, 2021
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Annexure 1 referred to in Paragraph 1 of the section on “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date

Re: Welspun Glcbatl Brands Limited

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
guantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) Fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year and
no material discrepancies were identified on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given by the management, there are
no immovable properties, included in property, plant and equipment/ fixed assets
of the company and accordingly, the requirements under paragraph 3(i)(c) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

{in The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable
intervals during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such
physical verification.

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Parinerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189
of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iii){(a), (b) and
(c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act 2013 in respect of loans
to directors including entities in which they are interested and in respect of loans
and advances given, investments made and, guarantees, and securities given have
been complied with by the company.

(V) The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to
76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as

amended}. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v)} of the Order are not
applicable.

(vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company
pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost
records under section 148({1) of the Companies Act, 2013, related to the
manufacture textile products, and are of the opinion that prima facie, the specified
accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have not, however,
made a detailed examination of the same.

(vii) {a} Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of cusiom, duty of excise, value added tax,
goods and service tax, cess and other statutory dues have generally been regularly

deposited with the appropriate authorities though there has been a slight delay in
a few cases.
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(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
payahle in respect of provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax,
service tax, sales-tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, goods and
service tax, cess and other statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable,

(¢) According to the records of the Company, there are no dues of duty of customs
and cess which have not been deposited on account of any dispute. The particulars
of dues of income-tax, sales-tax, duty of excise, value added tax and service tax on
account of any dispute, are as follows:

Name of Nature of Amount Period to Forum where dispute is
Statute Dues (Rsin which pending
Million)** amount
relates
AY 2010-11 _—

Income  Tax | Income Tax 184 | 10 AY 2017- Commissioner of Income
Act, 1961 Demand 18 Tax (Appeals)

Sales Tax 0.07 | Aug-07 Appellate tribunal

Sales Tax
Kerala VAT | including 0.03 | 2007-08 Assisiant Commissioner
Act, 2003 interest

Sales Tax 0.01 | 2009-10 Deputy commissioner
Madhya
Pradesh VAT \Tfﬁf Entry 0.64 | 2008-09 Sales Tax Officer
Act, 2002
Value Added . ,
Tax Karnataka Sales Tax 0.16 201112 Commercial Tax Officer

. Jan-2009 to | Central Excise Service

Finance  Act, Service Tax 1.42 | December Tax Appellate tribunal
1994 2009

**Net of amount pald under protest

{viil) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the
management, the Company has not defaulted In repayment of loans or borrowing
to a financial institution or bank. The Company does nct have any loan from
Government. Further, the Company has not issued any debenture.

(i) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has not raised any maney by way of initial public offer / further public
offer / debt instruments and term loans hence, reporting under clause (ix} is not
applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.
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x)

(xi)

(xii}

(xiii)

(xiv)

{(xv)

(xvi}

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true
and fair view of the financial statements and according to the information and
explanations given by the management, we report that no fraud by the company or
no fraud on the company by the officers and employees of the Company has been
noticed or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the
managerial remuneration has been paid / provided in accordance with the requisite
approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the
Companies Act, 2013.

In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of
clause 3(xi}) of the order are not applicable to the Company and hence not
commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management,
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188
of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall
examination of the balance sheet, the company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures
during the year under review and hence, reporting requirements under clause
3(xiv) are not applicable to the company and, not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him as referred to in section 192 of Companies Act, 2013.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section
45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAl Firm Registration Number: 324982

SN

per Anil Jobanputra

Pariner

Membership Number: 110759
UDIN: 21110759AAAACHG027

Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: May 13, 2021
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF WELSPUN GLOBAL BRANDS LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Welspun
Giobal Brands Limited ("the Company*) as of March 31, 2027 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controis

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India ("ICAI*). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under
the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note”)
and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements was established and maintained and if such controis operated effectively in all material
respects.

our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controis with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements, assessing
the risk thai a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements inciudes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detall, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internat financial control with reference to financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential componenis of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

M

per Anil Jobanputra

Partner

Membership Number: 110759
UDIN: 21T10759AAAACHS027
Place of Signature: Mumbal
Date: May 13, 2021




WELSFUN GLOBAL BRANDS LIMITED

BALANGE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2021

Note As at As at
Harch 31,2021  March 34, 2520
{Rs. million} (Rs. millicn)
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 28.42 1.92
Intangible assets 4 11.97 23.63
Right of Use Assels (ROU} 31 273.73 3274
Intangibie assels under development 4 0.93 B
Equity invesiment in subsidiaries 5 869.18 860.19
Financial assels
i. invesiments &(a) 0.88 260
ii. Loans 6(b) 1.60 1.70
iit. Olker financial assels 6{c) 17.85 53.47
Deferred tax assets (Net) 13 - 244.56
Nan-current tax assets 7 - 93.46
Other non-current assets #(a) .23 0,34
Total non - current assets 1,205.91 1,329.61
Current assets
inventories 9 1,911.28 558.77
Financial assels
i Trade receivables 6{d} 13,120.27 11,521.09
ii. Cash and cash equivalents 6(e} 72749 988.69
iil. Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents above 6(f) 10.38 3.62
iv. Loans &(b) 147 1.88
v, Other financiat assels B{(c) 1,270.29 243.74
Other current assets 8(b} 2,790.04 3,476.08
Total current assets 19,831.22 16,797.87
Total assets 21,037.13 18,127.48
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equlty
Equity share capital 10(a} 235.29 235.29
Other Equity:
Equity compenent of compound financia! inslruments 11(a) 608.70 BE0.40
Reserves and surplus 10(b) 2,95176 2,426.84
Other raserves 10{c) 337.15 {976.95)
Tatal equity 4,133.80 2,345,58
LIASILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabiities
i. Borrowings 11(a} 949.61 474,54
fi. Lease Liabilittes 31 170.31 14,76
iii. Cther financial liabilities 11{b) 47.67 47,88
Non-cument tax Habilities 12 74.93 -
Provisions 12{a) 27.38 26.02
Deferred tax liabiliies (Net) 13 141.77 -
Total non-current liabifities 1,411.68 983.20
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
i. Borrowings 11(a) 3,828.57 2,167.15
ii. Lease Liabiliies 3 121.27 19.81
iii. Trade payables
{a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 11{c) 4128.59 33,20
{b) Total ouistanding dues of credilors other than micro enterprises and smali enterprises 1t{c) 11,086.29 10,681.48
iit. Other financial lizbilites 11(b) 4,33 1,532,72
Provisians 12(b) 0.16 0.75
Employee benefit obligation 14 256.83 120.63
Current fax kabilties 15 33.39 33.39
Qther current liabiliies 16 232.07 229.56
Total current liabilities. 15,491.55 14,818.70
Total Habllities 146,803.23 15,781.80
Total equity and liabllities 2103713 18,127.48
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are sn integrat part of these financial statements.
As per our report of even date
ForSREBC&COLLP Fer and on behalf of the Board of Birectors

Chantered Accountants
ICAIl Firm Registration Number: 324582E/E300003

per Anil Johanputra Dipali Goenka Rajesh

Partner Managing Direclor Director

Membership Number: 110759 DIN 000CT1
el

idhi Tenna
Comipany Secratary

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 13, 2021

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 13, 2021




WELSPUN GLOBAL BRANDS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND 1.OS5 FOR THE YEAR ENRED MARCH 31, 2021

Note Year Ended Year Ended
March 31,2021  March 31, 2028
{Rs. milllioa} (Rs. milllen)
[ncome
Revenue from Operations 17 §3,987.14 57,028.68
Other Income 18 106.56 445.63
Total income 64,693,780 57,478.31
Expenses
Cost of materials cansumed 18 8,607.14 -
Purchases of stack-in-rade i9 40,946 &3 50,793 1%
Changes in Inventeries of Finished Goods, Work-in-Progress and stock-in-trade 20 (1.277.28) 860.58
Employee benefils expense 21 1,459,056 1,022.69
Depreciation and amortisation expense 22 118.08 58.49
Other expenses 23 4,093.39 4,178.01
Finanes costs 24 446.92 509.13
Total expenses 63,384.11 56,922.00
Profit before Exceptional ltems and Tax £982.59 556.21
Exceptional tems
Exceptional kems - lncame 25 - (2.58)
Profit Before Tax 698.59 558.89
income tax expense 26
Current tax 278.85 179.10
Deferrad tax (55.13) {34.66)
Total lncome Tax Expenses 223,72 144,44
Profitfar the year 475.87 414.45
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement gains on defined benefit plans 21 (2.21) {14.00)
Income Tax effect 26 0.56 4,47
Items that may be reclassified to profit orloss
Deferred gains Aloss} on cash flow hedges 10(c) 1,756.12 {2,436.02)
Income Tax effect 26 (442.02} 723.58
Other comprehensive Income /{loss) for the year, net of tax 1,312.45 {1,721.96)
YVotal comprehensive incomei({lossifor the year 1,788.32 {1,367.51)
garnings Per Share {Rs.) [Nominal value per share: Rs. 10 (2020: Rs.10)] 36
-Basic and Dtuted earnings per share 20.22 17.61
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial stalemenis.
As per our report of even dale
ForSREC&COLLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Charlered Accounfants
JCGAl Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

per Anil Jobanputra £ pali Goenka Rajesh Makrdiid
Partner Managing Director Director
Membership Number: 110758 DIN 00007199 DIN 00007179

Place: Mumbat
Date: May 13, 2021

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 13, 2021
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WELSPUN GLOBAL BRANDS LIMITED

CASHFLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

CASH FLOW FRDM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit 8efore Tax

Adjustments for :

Depreciation and amorlisation expense
Unrealised foreign exchange dilferances

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
{Gain¥ Loss on sala of investments

Liabikties Writtan Back as ao Longer Roquired
Impairement of | tment in Sut
Pravision for doubtfu! debis and advances
Exchangs (Gain)Loss Provision MTM
Debis/ advances wriften off

intarest income classilied as investing cash Mlows
Unwinding of discouni an security daposits

Financa costs

Ogparating Profit Bofora Warking Capital Changas

Adjusimonts for changas in working capital &
Increasg in trade receivables

Increass irade and other payables

Increase in employeo benefit obligations
Increase f (decraase) in othor currsnt labilities
{Increase) ! decreass in invenlories
(increase) ! decreass in other financial assets
Decroase in olher non-currant assols

{Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Assels

Cash fiow ganerated from operations
fncome tax paid (nat of refund}
Nat Cash Flow from { {usad In) Cparating Activities

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITES
Purchase of property, plant and

(b capital werk-in-progress and i
{Investmont inY realisation of Fixed Deposits and Margin Monay

Loans to employees and related partios

Proceed from sale of investment (nat)

Interest received

Nat Cash Flow from { {used In} Investing Activitias

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Redemplion af praference shares

Proceads fram barrowings - Curzent {nat)
Payment of lease liabilities
interest and cther finance cosl paid

Not Cash Flow fram Financing Activitles

HNet {decrease}/ Increasa in Cash and Cash Equivalents {A+ B + C)
Cash and cash equivalenis a the beginning af the year
Cash and cash equivalents al the end of the yoar

Not {decreasa) f Incresse In Cash and Cach Equivalents

Change in Liablity arising from financing activites

assols.

Yaar Endad Yoar Ended
March 31, 2021 March 21, 2020
(Rs. million) (Rs. million}
£699.53 558.89
118 06 58.49
(47.73) (424 63)
362 .03
- (058}
(35.80} {2.58)
- 140.00
14.28 7.88
(262.31) 84.08
21 475
{28.53) {19.32)
(3.20} (4.26}
446,92 609.13
867.:1 311,83
{1,594.49) {20090}
563.11 14030
134.04 37.52
(96.65) 156.94
{1,352.51) 860.58
(288.31) 105.63
o1 -
688.04 {1,763.28)
(1,546,668} (651.31)
{1.039.35) 260 52
(110.46) {207.07)
(1.149.81) 5345
(30.30} {187)
7.70 (16.93)
0.51 (5.34)
161 1.18
28.53 19.32
8.05 (3.74)
{134.65] -
1,461.42 1,307.63
(86.32) {4580
{360 .89) {429.94)
879.56 836.79
{262.20) 886.5¢
$89.69 10319
T2 .49 989.69
{262.20) 886.50

Effective interest rate

April 91, 2020 Cash Flow adjustmant March 31, 2021
Borrowings - Men Current [ Rofer Note 11{a) } auE 22 (1:34.65) BG.04 949 6%
Sarrowings - Gurrant | Refar Nota 11(a) I Z.167.15 1,467.42 - 3,628.57

Notas:

Tha cash {low slatement has beon prepared under tha indirect method a5 set out in Indian Accounting Standard {Ind AS 7) statement of cash flows.

The accompanying notes are an integeat part of these financea! statements.
As per our 1eport of even data

ForSRBC ACOLLP
Charlered Accountants
IC A Firm Registration Number. 324982E/E300003

por Anil Jobanputra
Partnor
Membarship Number: 110752

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 13, 2021

For and on bahalf of the Board of Directors

Ripafi Gosaka

Kanaging Director

DIV 00007

Can;bany Secretary

Place: Mumbai

Date: May 13, 2021

Rajesh Ma

Birector




WELSPUN GLOBAL BRANDS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

a. Equity Share Capital

(Rs. milion}
Parliculars Notes No of Shares Amount
Balance as at April 1, 2619 2,35,29,412 235,29
Changes in equity share capital during the year 10(a) - -
Ralance as at March 31, 2020 2,35,28.412 235.28
Changes in equiy share capital uring the year 10(a) - -
iBalance as at March 31, 2021 2,35,28,412 235.29
b. Gther Equity
{Rs, milicn)
Equity Reserves and Surplus Other Reserve Total
cemponent of Capital Securitles | Retained Total Hedging Reserve
Particulars Notes compound Redemption | Premizm | earnings
financial Reserve Account
instruments
Balance as at Aprif 1, 2019 650.40 10.00 1,163.95 847.97 2,021.92 735.48 3,417.30
Profit for the year - - - 414.45 414,45 - 414.45
Ciher Comprehansive Incomae /{loss) 10(b) - - - (8.53)] {8.53} {1,712.43) (1,721.956)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - - - 404.92 404,92 {1,712.43} {1,207.51}
Balance as at March 31, 2020 660.40 10.00 1,163.95 1,262.89 2,426.84 {976.95} 2,110.28
{Rs. million}
Equity Reserves and Surplus Other Reserve Tatal
Particulars companent of Capital Securities Retalned Total Hedging Reserveo
Notes c::;:;‘;::ld Redemption | Premium earnings
R Reserve Account
instruments
Balance as at April 1, 2020 660.40 10.00 1,163.95 1,252.89 2,426.84 (876.95) 2,110.29
Profit for the year - - - 475,87 475,87 - 475,87
Other Comprehensive Income /{loss) 10(b) - - - (1.85) (1.65) 1.314.10 1,312.45
Transfer lo Capital redemption Reserve - 434.85 - {134.65) - - -
Equity Component of preference Shares on redemption 11(a} {80.76) - - 50.70 50.70 - -
Total Comprehensive Incemef{loss) for the year (59.70} 134,65 - 380,27 524,92 1,314.10 %,788.32
Balance as at March 31, 2021 609,70 144.65 1,163.95 1,643.16 2,951.76 337.15 3,898.51

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even dale

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants

per Anil Jobanputra
Partner
Membership Number 110752

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 13, 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Dlpali Goenka
Managing Director
DIN 00007189

Combany Secretary

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 13, 2021

Rajesh Mai
Director
DIN 0000717

Sahdeepd Kury, Garg/
Chief ial Office:




WELSPUN GLOBAL BRANDS LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

Note 1: General Information

Welspun Global Brands Limited (herein referred to as "WGBL" or “the Company"} is public limited
Company incorporated on December 14, 2004 and domiciled in india. The address of its registered
office is 9th Fleor B Wing Trade World, Senapati Bapat Marg Kamala Mills Compound Lower Parel,
Mumbai, Maharashtra - 400013. The Company is engaged in manufacturing of wide range of home

textile products, mainly terry towels, bed linen products and rugs in International markets and on a
smaller scate in domestic market.

The financial statements were authorized for issue by the board of directors on May 13, 2021.

Note 2: Significant Accounting Policies

This Note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these
financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented.

2.1 Basis of preparation of financial statements

2.2

The standalone financial statements has been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) nofified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) read with
Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended from time to time. The financial
statements have been prepared on an accrual and going concern basis. The financial statements
have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain assets and liabilities that is
measured at fair value as stated in subsequent policies.

Foreign currency translation
a) Functicnal and presentation currency

The financial statemenis of the Company are presented in INR, which is also its functional currency
and all items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the same
functional currency.

b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are franslated and recorded into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the franslation of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at vear end exchange rates are generally recognized in

Statement of Profit and Loss, They are deferred in equity if they relate to qualifying cash flow
hedges.

Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in the
Statement of Profit and Loss, within finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are

presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a net basis within other expenses or other income,
as applicable.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historicai cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transacfions. Non-monetary items measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value is determined. The gain or loss arising on fransiation of non-monetary items measured at fair
value is freated in line with the recognition cf the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item
(i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognized in OCI or profit or
loss are also recognized in QCI or profit or loss, respectively)




WELSPUN GLOBAL BRANDS LIMITED
NOTES TO F[NANCEAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

2.3 Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when control of the goods or services are
transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Company has generally
concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements because it typically controls the goods
or services before transferring them to the customer.

Revenue excludes amounis collected on behalf of third parties.

The disclosures of significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions relating to revenue
from contracts with customers are provided in Note 2.25(vii).

Sale of goods

For sale of goods, revenue is recognized when control of the goods has transferred at a point in fime
i.e. when the goods have been delivered to the specific location (delivery). Foliowing delivery, the
customer has full discretion over the responsibility, manner of distribution, price to sell the goods and
bears the risks of obsolescence and loss in relation to the goods. A receivable is recognized by the
Company when the goods are delivered to the customer as this represents the point in time at which
the right to consideration becomes unconditional, as only the passage of time is required before
payment is due. Payment is due within 0-120 days. The Company considers the effects of variable
consideration, the existence of significant financing components, noncash consideration, and
consideration payable fo the customer (if any).

Variable consideration:

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Company estimates the amount of
consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for transfeiring the goods to the customer. The
variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable
that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur
when the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved. Some
contracts for the sale of goods provide customers with rebates (including mark-downs, chargebacks
etc.). The rights of return and rebates give rise to variable consideration.

The Company provides retrospective rebates including, markdowns, chargebacks etc. to certain
customers once the conditions relating fo such rebates are satisfied in terms of the contract.
Rebates are offset against amounts payable by the customer. To estimate the variable consideration
for the expected future rebates, the Company applies the most likely amount method for contracts.
The Company then applies the requirements on constraining estimates of variable consideration and
recognises a refund liability for the expected future rebates.

Contract balances:
Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional
{i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to
accounting policies of financial assets in note no. 2.14 Financial Instruments — Financial Assets.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services fo a customer for which the
Company has received consideration {or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer, If a
customer pays consideration before the Company fransfers goods or services to the customer, a
contract liability is recognized when the payment is made or the payment is due {whichever is

earlier). Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Company performs under the
contract
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WELSPUN GLOBAL BRANDS LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

Refund liabilities

A refund lability is the obligation to refund some or all of the consideration received (or receivable)
from the customer and is measured at the amount the Company ultimately expects it will have fo
return to the customer. The Company updates its estimates of refund liabilites (and the
corresponding change in the transaction price} at the end of each reporting period. Refer fo above
accounting policy on variable consideration.

Cost to obtain a contract and cost to fulfill a contract

The Company pays sales commission to its selling agents for each contract that they obtain for the
Company. The Company has elected to apply the optional practical expedient for costs to obtain a
contract which allows the Company ito immediately expense sales commissions (under other
expenses) because the amortization period of the asset that the Company otherwise would have
used is less than one year,

Costs to fulfill a contract i.e. freight, insurance and other selling expenses are recognized as an
expense in the period in which related revenue is recognized.

Other Revenue
Export Incentives

Export benefits arising from Duty Drawback Scheme, Rebate of State & Central Taxes and Levies,
and other applicable export incentives are recognised on post export basis at the rate at which the
entitlements accrue and is included in the ‘Other Operating Income’(Revenue from operation).

Other Income
Other Income is accounted for on accrual basis except where receipt of income is uncertain.

Income Tax

The income tax expense ar credit for the year is the tax payable on the current vear's taxable income
based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred {ax assets and liabilities
atfributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses. Current and deferred tax is recognized
in the Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent it relates to items recognized directly in
equity or other comprehensive income, in which case it is recognized in equity or other
comprehensive income respectively,

Current income tax

Current tax charge is based on taxable profit for the year. The tax rates and tax laws used to
compute the amount are those that are enacted, at the reporiing date where the Company operates
and generates taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax retums
with respect fo situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
Current tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
{ax assets against current tax liabilities..

Deferred fax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases
of assets and liahilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting
date. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable income
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses, depreciation
carry-forwards and unused tax credits could be utilized.




WELSPUN GLOBAL BRANDS LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

Deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss). Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured based
on the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset is realized or the liability is
seitled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect
changes in probability that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered. Deferred income tax assets and lizbilities are off-set against each other and the
resultant net amount is presented in the Balance Sheet, if and only when, (a) the Company has a
legally enforceable right to set-off the current income tax assets and liabilities, and (b) the Deferred
income tax assets and liabilities refate to income tax levied by the same taxation authority.

Deferred {ax assetls are not recognized for temporary differences between the carrying amount and
tax bases of investments in subsidiaries where it is not probable that the differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will not be available against which the temporary difference
can be utilized.

Minimum Alternate Tax ('MAT’) credit entitement is recognized as a deferred tax asset if it is
probable that MAT credit will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
-against which the deferred tax asset can be utilised.

2.6 Exceptional items
Exceptional items comprise items of income and expense, including tax items, that are material in
amount and unlikely to recur and which merit separate disclosure in order to provide an
understanding of the Company’s underlying financial performance.

2.7 Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if
the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make
lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

i) Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial
direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date ess any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use asseis are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of
the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:

« Property 110 2 years
e QOther equipments 2to 4 years
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WELSPUN GLOBAL BRANDS LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

If ownership of the leased asset fransfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost
reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life
of the asset. The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer {o the accounting policies
in Note 2,11 Impairment of non-financial assets.

ii) Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including insubstance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual
value guarantees. The lease payments alsc include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain fo be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the
lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease
payments that do-not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are
incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the
payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate
at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the
accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of
lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the
lease payments or change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

iii} Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short<term leases of
machinery and equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value
assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value.
Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low value assets are recognised as expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a
straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss
due to its operating nature

Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all business combinations, regardless of
whether equity instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition comprises the:

» fair values of the assets transferred;

= ligbilities incurred {o the former owners of the acquired business;

= equity interests issued by the Company; and

« fair value of any asset or {iability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business

~ combination are, with limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.
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WELSPUN GLOBAL BRANDS LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the

= cansideration transferred;
= amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity, and
« acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are
less than the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the business acquired, the difference is
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as capital reserve provided
there is clear evidence of the underlying reasons for classifying the business combination as a
bargain purchase. In other cases, the bargain purchase gain is recognised directly in equity as
capital reserve.

Where seftlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are
discounted to their present value as at the date of exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’s
incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which a similar borrowing could be obtained from an
independent financier under comparable terms and conditions.

Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as a
financial liability are subsequently remeasured to fair value with changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer's
previously held equity inferest in the acquire is remeasured fo fair value at the acquisition date. Any

gains or losses arising from such remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income, as appropriate.

Propeity, plant and equipment

Freehold land is carried at historical cost, All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated
at historical cost less depreciation, Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly atiributable to
the acquisition of the items. Cost may also include transfers from equity of any gains or losses on
qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency purchases of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any
component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Freehold land is not depreciated. Leasehold improvements are amortised over the shorter of
estimated useful life or the related lease term. Depreciation is calculated using the straightdine
method to allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Assets Estimated Useful
Life {vears)

Office Equipment 5

Furniture and fixtures 10

Computer and servers Jiob

Vehicles 5

Electrical installation 10

Mobile 3




WELSPUN GLOBAL BRANDS LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 21, 2021

The property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases is depreciated over the asset's
useful life or over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term if there is no reasonable
certainty that the Company will obtain ownership at the end of the lease term.

Estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation methods are reviewed annually, taking into
account commercial and technological obsolescence as well as normal wear and tear and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.

Galns and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These
are included in profit or loss within other expenses or other income, as applicable.

2.10 Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives acquired by the Company are measured af cost less
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization is charged on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortization method
are reviewed at the end of each annual reporting pericd, with the effect of any changes in the
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Amortisation methods and pericds

Intangible assets comprise of computer software which is amortized on a straight-line basis over its
expected useful life over a period of five years.

2.11 Impairment of asseis

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortization and
are tested annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other
assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units). For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are
largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

2.12 Inventories
Raw materials and stores, work in progress, traded and finished goods

Raw materials and stores, work in progress, traded and finished goods are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost of raw maferials and traded goods comprises cost of purchases on
weighted average basis. Cost of work-in progress and finished goods comprises direct materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead expenditure, the latter
being allocated on the basis of normal operating capacity. Cost of inventories also include all other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Costs are assigned fo
individual items of inventory moving weighted average basis. Costs of purchased inventory are
determined after deducting rebates and discounts. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

Finished/ traded goods

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of inventories include all
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories fo their present location and condition. Costs of
inventory is determined on first-in—first-out basis. Costs of inventory are determined after deducting
rebates and discounts. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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WELSPUN GLOBAL BRANDS LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

2.13 Investment in Subsidiaries:

Equity Investment in subsidiaries are carried at cost in the separate financial statements and
accounted on first-in first-out (FIFO Basis)

2.14 Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets
(i) Classification
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

» those 10 be measured subsequently at fair value {(either through other comprehensive income, or
through profit or loss), and
» those measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity's business mode! for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income.

For investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the investment
is held.

For investments in equity instruments, this will depend on whether the Company has made an
irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value
through other comprehensive income,

The Company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing
those assets changes.

(ii} Initial Recognition and Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value
through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

a. Debt instruments

Subseguent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company's business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the assef. There are three measurement
categories into which the Company classifies its debt insfruments:

« Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely paymenis of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. A gain or loss
on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost and is not part of a hedging
relationship is recognised in profit or Joss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest

income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate
method

= Falr value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Assets that are held for collection of

contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assefs' cash flows represent

solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVOCI!). Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses
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which are recognised in profit and loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised
in other expenses or other incomes, as applicable. Interest income from these financial assets is
included in other income using the effective interest rate method.

= Fair value through profit or loss (FVPL): Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or
FVOCI are measured at fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subscquently measured at fair value through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging relationship is
recognised in profit or loess and presented net in the statement of profit and loss within other
expenses or other incomes, as applicable in the period in which it arises. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in other income.

b. Equity investments

Investment in subsidiaries are carried at cost in the separate financial statements and accounted
on first-in first-out (FIFO) basis.

The Company subsequently measures all other equity investments at fair value. Where the
Company's management has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in
other comprehensive income, there will be no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and
losses to profit or loss. Dividends from such invesiments are recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss as other income when the Company's right to receive payments is established. Changes in
the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments
measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from cther changes in fair value

(iii} Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward locking basis the expected credit losses associated with its
assets carried at amortised cost and FVOC! debt instruments. The impairment methodology applied
depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. Refer Note 28 details how
the Company determines whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109
Financial Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the receivables.

(iv) Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset is derecognised only when
* The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

= retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a
contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial
asset is derecognised. Where the entity has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised.

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor refains substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the Company has
not retained control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains confrol of the financial asset,
the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset.
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(v} Income recognition
a. Inferest income

Interest income from debt instruments is recognised using the effective interest rate method, The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated fufure cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset. When
calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimales the expected cash flows by
considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayrment, extension,
call and simitar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses.

b. Dividends

Dividends are recognised in profit or loss only when the right to receive payment is established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Company, and the
amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

{vi) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes outstanding bank
overdraft shown within current liabilities in statement of financial position and which are considered as
integral part of Company's cash management policy.

(vii) Trade receivable

Trade receivable are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

Financial liabilities
{i) Measurement:

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value, reduced by transaction costs (in case of
financial liability not at fair value through profit or loss), that are directly attributable to the issue of
financial liability. After initial recognition, financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using
effective interest method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash outflow (including all fees paid, fransaction cost, and other premiums or discounis)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriaie, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition. At the time of initial recognition, there is no financial liability
irrevocably designated as measured at fair value through profit or loss. Liabilities from finance lease
agreements are measured at the lower of fair value of the leased asset or present value of minimum
lease payments.

(if) Derecognition:

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or madification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition
of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.
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(iii) Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds {net of transaction
costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised
as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as
a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability
that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any
non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in Statement of profit and loss .

Where the terms of a financial liability are renegotiated and the entity issues equity instruments to a
creditor to extinguish ali or part of the liability (debt for equity swap), a gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss, which is measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability and the fair value of the eguity instruments issued.

Where there is a breach of a material provision of a long-term loan arrangement on or before the
end of the reporting period with the effect that the liability becomes payable on demand on the
reporting date, the entity does not classify the liability as current, if the lender agreed, after the
reporting period and before the approval of the financial statements for issue, not fo demand
payment as a consequence of the breach.

(iv) Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilittes for goods and services provided to the Company prier to the end
of financial year which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are recognised, initially at fair value,
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective interest rate method.

Financial gquarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial liability at the time the guarantee is
issued. The liability is initially measured at fair value and subsequently at the higher of the amount
determined in accordance with Ind AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
and the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortization, where appropriate.

Derivatives and hedging activities

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and
are subsequently re-measured to their fair value at the end of each reporting pericd. The accounting
for subsequent changes in fair value depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging
instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged and the type of hedge relationship
designated.

The Company designates their derivatives as hedges of foreign exchange risk associated with the
cash flows of highly probable forecast transactions and variable interest rate risk associated with
borrowings (cash flow hedges).

The Company documents at the inception of the hedging fransaction the economic relationship
between hedging instruments and hedged items including whether the hedging instrument is
expected to offset changes in cash flows of hedged items. The Company documents its risk
management objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions at the inception of
each hedge relationship.
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The full fair value of a hedging derivative is classified as a non-current asset or lability when the
remaining maturity of the hedged item is more than 12 months; it is classified as a current gsset or
liability when the remaining maturity of the hedged item is less than 12 months. Trading derivatives
are classified as a current asset or liability.

(i) Cash flow hedges that qualify for hedge accounting

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as
cash flow hedges is recognised in the other comprehensive income in cash flow hedging reserve
within equity, limited to the cumulative change in fair value of the hedged item on a present value
basis from the inception of the hedge. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, within the statement of profit or loss.

When option contracts are used to hedge forecast transactions, the Company designates only the
intrinsic value of the option contract as the hedging instrument. Gains or losses relating fo the
effective portion of the change in intrinsic value of the option contracts are recognised in the cash
flow hedging reserve within equity. The changes in the time value of the option contracts that relate
fo the hedged item {‘aligned time value'} are recognised within other comprehensive income in the
costs of hedging reserve within equity.

When forward contracts are used o hedge forecast transactions, the Company generally designates
only the change in fair value of the forward contract related to the spot component as the hedging
instrument. Gains or losses relating to the effective portion of the change in the spot component of
the forward contracts are recognised in other comprehensive income in cash flow hedging reserve
within equity. The change in the forward element of the contract that relates to the hedged item
{‘aligned forward element’) is recognized within other comprehensive income in the costs of hedging
reserve within equily, In some cases, the entity may designate the full change in fair value of the
forward confract {including forward points) as the hedging instrument. In such cases, the gains and
losses relating to the effective portion of the change in fair value of the entire forward contract are
recognised in the cash flow hedging reserve within equity.

Amounts accumulated in equity are reclassified to profit or loss in the periods when the hedged item
affects profit or loss (for example, when the forecast sale that is hedged takes place).

When the hedged forecast transaction results in the recognition of a non-financial asset (for example
inventory), the amounts accumulated in equity are transferred to profit or loss as follows:

With respect fo gain or loss relating to the effective portion of the intrinsic value of opticn contracts,
both the deferred hedging gains and losses and the deferred aligned time value of the option
confracts are included within the initial cost of the asset. The deferred amounts are uitimately
recognised in profit or loss as the hedged item affects profit or loss (for example, through cost of
sales).

With respect to gain or loss relating to the effective portion of the spot component of forward
contracts, both the deferred hedging gains and losses and the deferred aligned forward points are
included within the initial cost of the asset, The deferred amounts are ultimately recognised in profit
or loss as the hedged item affects profit or loss (for example, through cost of sales).

When a hedging instrument expires, or is sold or terminated, or when a hedge no longer meets the
criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative deferred gain or loss and deferred costs of hedging in
equity at that time remains in equity until the forecast transaction occurs. When the forecast
transaction is no Jonger expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss and deferred costs of hedging
that were reported in equity are immediately reclassified to profit or loss within other gains/({losses).

If the hedge ratio for risk management purposes is no longer optimal but the risk management
objective remains unchanged and the hedge continues to qualify for hedge accounting, the hedge
relationship will be rebalanced by adjusting either the volume of the hedging instrument or the
volume of the hedged item so that the hedge ratio aligns with the ratio used for risk management
purposes. Any hedge ineffectiveness is calculated and accounted for in profit or loss at the time of
the hedge relationship rebalancing.
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{ii) Net investment hedge

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations are accounted for similar to cash flow hedges.

Any gain or loss on the hedging instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge is
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in foreign currency franslation reserve
in eguity. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in profit or loss
within other gains/(losses).Gains and losses accumulated in equity are reclassified to profit or loss
on the disposal of a forcign operation.

(iii} Derivatives that are not designated as hedges

The Company enters into certain derivative contracts to hedge risks which are not designated as
hedges. Such contracts are accounted for at fair value through profit or loss and are included in
other gains/(losses).

Embedded Derivatives

Derivatives embedded in a host coniract that is an asset within the scope of Ind AS 109 are not
separated. Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when
determining whether their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest.

Derivatives embedded in all other host contract are separated only if the economic characteristics
and risks of the embedded derivative are not closely related fo the economic characteristics and
risks of the host and are measured at fair value through profit or loss, Embedded derivatives closely
refated to the host coniracls are not separated.

Embedded foreign currency derivatives

Embedded foreign currency derivatives are not separated from the host contract if they are closely
related. Such embedded derivatives are closely related to the host contract, if the host contract is not
leveraged, does not contain any option feature and requires payments in one of the following
currencies:

» the functional currency of any substantial party to that contract,

s the currency in which the price of the related good or service that is acquired or delivered is
routinely denominated in commercial fransactions around the world,

e a currency that is commonly used in confracis fo purchase or sell non-financial items in the
economic environment in which the fransaction takes place (i.e. relatively liquid and stable
currency)

Foreign currency embedded derivatives which do not meet the above criteria are separated and the
derivative is accounted for at fair value through profit and loss. The Company currently does not
have any such derivatives which are not closely related.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right
must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptey of the Company or the counterparty.
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2.15 Compound instrument

Compound financial instrument issued by the Company comprises of compulscrily redeemable non-
convertible preference shares. Compound financial instruments are split into separate equity and
liability components. The liability component of a compound financial instrument is initially
recognised at the fair vaiue of a similar liability that does not have discretionary dividend feature/ off
market interest rate. Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability component of a compound
financial instrument is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The equity
component is initially recognised at the difference between the fair value of the compound financial
instrument as a whole and the fair value of the liability component. This is recognised and included
in shareholders' equity, net of income tax effects, and not subsequently re-measured. Any directly
attributable fransaction costs are allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion fo
their initlal carrying amounts Dividend/ Interest related to the liability component of compound
instrument is recognised in profit or loss (unless it qualifies for inclusion in the cost of an asset).

2.16 Borrowing cosis

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete
and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time fo get ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

2.17 Employee benefiis
a) Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salarles, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled
whelly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related
service are recognised in respect of employees’ services up fo the end of the reporting period and
are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are
presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

b) Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The liabilities for earned leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of
the period in which the employees render the related service. They are therefore measured as the
present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees
up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. The benefits are
discounted using the market vyields at the end of the reporting period that have terms approximating
to the terms of the related obligation. Remeasurements as a result of experience adjustments and
changes in actuarial assumptions are racognised in profit or loss.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an
unconditional right fo defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting period, regardless
of when the actual settlement is expected to occur.

¢) Post-employment obligations
The Company operates the following post-employment schemes:

- defined benefit plans such as gratuity, and
- defined contribution plans such as provident fund and superannuation Fund
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Defined Benefit Plans

Gratuity obligations

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is
the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair
value of plan assefs. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the
proiected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation denominated in INR is determined by discounting
the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on
government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. The benefits
which are denominated in currency other than INR, the cash flows are discounted using market yields
determined by reference to high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in
which the benefits WGBL. be paid, and that have terms approximating {o the terms of the related
obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined
benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense
in the statement of profit and loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive
income. They are included in retained eamings in the statement of changes in equity and in the
balance sheet.

Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit and loss in the subsequent periods.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or
curtailments are recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

Defined contribution plans

Provident Fund, Employee State Insurance Corporation (ESIC), Pension Fund and other
Social Security Funds

The Contribution towards provident fund, ESIC, pension fund and Social Security Funds for certain
employees is made to the regulatory authorities where the Company has no further obligations.
Such benefits are classified as Defined Conftribution Schemes as the Company does not carry any
further obligations apart from the contributions made on a monthly basis.

Superannuation Fund

Contribution towards superannuation fund for certain employees is made to SBi Life Insurance
Company where the Company has no further obligations. Such benefits are classified as Defined
Coniribution Schemes as the Company does not carry any further obligations, apart from
contribution made on monthly basis.

d) Bonus Plan

The Company recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses. The Company recognises a
provision where contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation.
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2.18 Provisions and contingent liabilities

a) Provisions for legal claims, service warranties, volume discounts and returns are recognised
when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past evenis, it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be
reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses,

Provisions for resfructuring are recognised by the Company when it has developed a detailed formal
plan for restructuring and has raised a valid expectation in those affected that the Company WGBL

carry ouf the restructuring by starting to implement the plan or announcing its main features to those
affected by it.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of cbligations may be small. Provisions are measured at the present value of management's
best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects cumrent
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

The measurement of provision for restructuring includes only direct expenditures arising from the
restructuring, which are both necessarily entailed by the restructuring and not associated with the
ongoing activities of the Company.

b) Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events
the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain fulure events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present cbligation that
arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

¢) Contingent Assets are disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

2.19 Contributed Equity
Equity shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly atiributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds,

2.20 Provision for dividends
Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorised and no
longer at the discretion of the entity, on or before the end of the reporting period but not distributed at
the end of the reporting period.

2.21 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:
s the profit aftributable to owners of the Company
o by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted

for bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shares.(Refer
Note 36)
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Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share
to take into account:

e the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential
equity shares, and

s the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding
assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equily shares,

2.22 Rounding of amounts

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and Notes have been rounded off to the nearest
millions with two decimal as per the requirement of Schedule lil, unless otherwise stated,
2.23 Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

e Expected to be realised or infended fo be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

e Held primarily for the purpose of trading

o Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

¢ Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to setile a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when:

e« [{is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
e ltis held primarily for the purpose of trading
e |tis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

e There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

» The operating cycle is the time between the acguisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its
operating cycle,

2,24 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision maker.

The board of directors of the Company assesses the financial performance and position of the
Company and makes strategic decisions. Refer Note 32 for segment information presented.

2.25 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumption:

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by definition,
will seldom equal the actual resulis. Management also needs to exercise judgment in applying the
Company's accounting policies. This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher
degree of judgment or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to
estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. Detailed
information about each of these estimates and judgments is included in relevant notes together with
information about the basis of calculation for each affected line item in the financial statements
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Critical estimates and judgments
Current tax expense and deferred tax

The calculation of the Company's tax charge necessarily involves a degree of estimation and judgment
in respect of certain items whose tax treatment cannot be finally determined until resolution has been
reached with the relevant tax authority or, as appropriate, through a formal legal process. The final
resolution of some of these items may give rise to material profits/losses and/or cash flows. Significant
judgments are involved in determining the provision for income taxes, including amount expected to be
paid/recovered for uncertain tax positions. {Refer Note 26)

Recognition of deferred tax assets/ liabilities

The recognition of deferred tax assets/ liabilities is based upon whether it is more likely than not that
sufficient and suitable taxable profits will be available in the future against which the reversal of
temporary differences can be deducted, To determine the future taxable profits, reference is made to
the latest available profit forecasts. (Refer Note 13).

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities,

The Company exercises judgment in measuring and recognising provisions and the exposures {o
contingent liabilities which is related fo pending litigation or other outstanding claims. Judgment is
necessary in assessing the likelihood that a pending claim will succeed, or a liability will arise, and to
quantify the possible range of the financial settlement. Because of the inherent uncertainty in this
evaluation process, actual liability may be different from the originally estimated as provision. (Refer
Note 30).

i} Useful life of Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible assets

Property, Plant and Equipment represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the Company.
The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset's
expected useful life and the expected residual value at the end of its life. The useful lives and residual
values of Company's assets are determined by management at the time the asset is acquired and
reviewed periodically, including at each financial year end. The lives are based on historical
experience with similar assets as well as anticipation of future events, which may impact their life, such
as changes in technology. For the relative size of the Company's property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets (Refer Notes 3 and 4).

iv) Impairment for equity Investments in Subsidiaries

To test the impairment of equity investment in one of subsidiaries, market related information and
estimates are used to determine the recoverable amount. Key assumptions on which management has
based its determination of recoverable amount include estimated long term growth rates, weighted
average cost of capital and estimated operating margins. Cash flow projections take into account past
experience and represent management's best estimate about future developments. Changing the
assumptions selected by management, in particular the discount rate and growth rate assumptions
used in the cash flow projections, could significantly affect the Company's impairment evaluation and
hence resuits.

Defined Benefit Obligation

The present value of the defined benefit obligations depends on a number of factors that are
determined on an actuarial basis using a number of assumptions. The assumptions used in
determining the net cost (income) for post employments plans include the discount rate. Any changes
in these assumptions will impact the carrying amount of such obligations.

The Company determines the appropriate discount rate at ithe end of each year, This is the interest
rate that should be used to determine the present value of estimated fufure cash outflows expected to
be required to settle the defined benefit obligations. In determining the appropriate discount rate, the
Company considers the interest rates of government bonds of maturity approximating the terms of the
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related plan liability. Refer Note 21 for the detzils of the assumptions used in estimating the defined
benefit obligation.

Fair value of Financial Instruments.

The fair value of financial instruments that are notf traded in an active market is determined using
valuation techniques. The Company uses its judgment to select a variety of methods and make
assumplions (hal are mainly based on markel condilions existing al lhe end of each 1eporling period.
For details of the key assumptions used and the impact of changes to these assumptions see Note 27.

Revenue Recognition

The Company's confracts with customers include promises to transfer goods to the customers.
Judgment is required {o determine the transaction price for the confract. The transaction price could
ba either a fixed amount of customer consideration or variable consideration with elements such as
schemes, incentives, cash discounts, rebates, chargebacks, markdowns eic. The estimated amount
of variable consideration is adjusted in the fransaction price only to the extent that it is highly probable
that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognized will not occur and is
reassessed at the end of each reporting period.

Cost to obtain a contract are generally expensed as incurred. The assessment of these criteria
requires the application of judgment, in paricular when considering if costs generate or enhance
resources to be used to satisfy future performance obligations and whether costs are expected to be
recovered.

Estimation uncertainty refating to the global health pandemic on COVID-19

The Company has adopted measures to curb the spread of infection of COVID 12 in order to protect
the health of its employees and ensure business continuity with minimal disruption including remote
working, maintaining social distancing, sanitization of workspaces efc. The Company's operations,
revenue and consequently profit during the year ended March 31, 2021 were impacted due to Covid-
19. The Company has considered the possible effects that may result from outbreak of COVID-19 in
the preparation of this financial results including the recoverability of carrying amounts of financial and
non-financial assets and liquidity assessment based on future cash flow projections. In building the
assumptions relating o the possible uncertainties in the global economic conditions as at the date of
approval of these financial statements, the Company has used internal and external sources of
information and expects that the carrying amount of the assets will be recovered. The impact of the
global health pandemic may be different from that estimated as at the date of approval of these
financial statements.
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WELSPUN GLOBAL BRANDS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

Note 4 - Intangible Assets Rs. million)
Computer Total Intangible assets
Software under development
Year ended 31 March 2020
Gross carrying amount 47.92 47,92 -
Addition - - -
Disposals - - -
Closing gross carrying amount 47.92 47.92 -
Accumulated amortisation
Cpening accumulated depraciation 16.82 15.82 -
Depreciation charge during the year 8.47 8.47 -
Closing accumulated amortisation 24.29 2429 -
Net Carrying amount 23.63 23.63 -
Year ended 31 March 2021
Gross carrying amount 47.92 47.92 -
Additions - - 0.93
Disposals (17.65) (17.65) -
Closing gross carrying amount 30.27 30.27 0.93
Accumulated amortisation
Opening accumulated depreciation 24.29 24.29 -
Depreciation charge during the vear 7.83 7.83 -
Disposals (13.82) {13.82) -
Closing accumulated amortisation 18.30 18.30 -
Net carrying amount 11.97 11.97 0.93

Notes :-

{i} Intangible assets under development

Intangible assets under development comprises of Software development expenses.




WELSPUN GLOBAL BRANDS LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

As at As at
Margh 31, 2021  Karch 34, 2020
{Rs. milllon}  (Rs, million}
Note 5: H rrant aquity nt in subsidiaris
Unquotad
370,862 {March 31, 2020 : 370,862} Eqully Shares of US $ 1 each, 1658 1658
fully paid up of Walspun Maunitius Enterprises Limited
Less : Provision for diminution in value of Investmant {16.58) [16.58)
1,500 {March 31, 2020 : 1,600} Equily Shares of US S 100 each 28197 w3167
fully paid tp of Walspun USA Inc.
35,244 {March 31, 2020 : 35,244} Equity Shares of GBP { each, 72722 72t 22
fully paid up of Walspun Holding Privalo Limited {Cyprus)
Less : Provision for impainnent (Refer Naote 40) (140.00} {140.00)
58722 55722
‘Total B8B9.19 B65.19

Hota B : Financial assats
& {a) : Non-currant investment

Othars - Fair vatue through profit and loss
Investment - §B1 Life Insurance

Total {Othars)

Aggregate amount of quoled investimants and markat valua thereal
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 0.8% 2.60

6(b) Non-curront Loans

Laar {o Relaled Party (Rofer Note 35(ii)}

- Welspun Mauritius Enterprises Limited 24504 25361
Less : Allowance for Doubtful Loan 24504 263.61
Qthars
Loan to Employees 180 170
Totalloans 1.60 1.70

Break-up of sacurity datails

Unsecured, considered good 1.60 170
Loan recaivable which have significant increase in credil risk - -
Loan recoivable - Credit impaired 245.04 25361
Allowanes for doubtiuf debts {245.04) (253.61)
Tatal 1.50 1.79

6(b) Currant Loans

Cthers
Loan 1o Employees 147 1.88
Total 147 1,88

Braak-up of sacurity detalls

Unsecured, considered good 147 1.88
{oan bla which have it increase in credit risk
Loan receivabla - Credit impaired

Allowance for doublful debls

Total 147 1.88

B(c) : Other non-currant financial assats

Fixed Deposits wilh Banks with maturity mora than 12 menths = 050 14.96
Security Doposits to Others 17.35 325
Security Deposit te Related Pany

« Welzpun Realty Private Limited - 3526
Total 17.B5 53.47

" Held as kon by sales lax authoritics

§{c) : Othar currant financial assels

Gavemmant Grants Receivable 173.68 156.62
Mark-ta-Market Gain on Forward Contracts 71288 -
Olher Recsivables 27367 -
Security Daposits ta Others 839 3.50
Security Deposit to Related Party

- Wolspur Realty Private Limtted 101.41 8316
Interest Accrued on Fixed Deposite/Others 0.25 046

Tatal 1,276.2¢ 243.74




WELSPUN GLOBAL BRANDS LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

As at As at
March 31, 2021 #arch 31, 2020
(Rs. million) {Rs. millian)
6{d) : Trade receivables
Receivable from refated parties (Refer Note 35 (i) 7,275.57 6026.77
Receivable from others 5.869.68 5.522.54
Less : Aliowance for daubtiuf debts 24.98 28,22
Total receivables 13,120.27 11,521.03
Current partion 1312027 11.521.09
Non-current portion - .
Broak-up of cecurity details
Secured, considered good - .
Unsecured. considered good 43,120.27 11.521.08
Trade receivabla which have significant increase In credit risk - -
Trade reseivable - Credit impaired 24.98 78,22
Impairment allowance (24,98) (28.22)
Total 13,120.27 11,521.09
6[e) Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances with bank
- in Current Accounts 194.09 989.67
Fixed Deposits (less than 3 months matutily) 19.00 -
Money In Transit 514.38 -
Cash on Hand 0.02 G.02
Telal cash and cash equivatants 727.49 989,69

6(f} Bank halances other than cash & cash equivalents
Olner Bank Balances
- Fixed Deposits with maturity period of more than 3 months buf less than 12 months 10.38 3.62
(Includes Rs. 0.04 million (March 31, 2620: Rs. 0.04 million)
under lien with sales tax authorities)

Tetal 10.38 362

Note 7: Non-current tax assets

Nen-current tax assets

- 8346

Total - 83,46
Note 8{a): Other non-current assets

Balances with Customs, Excise, Sales Tax and other Government Authorities 0.23 0.34
Total 0.23 0,34
Note B{b): Other current assets

Balances with Customs, Excise, Sales Tax and ather Governmenl Authorities 2,611.04 324052
Advance to Vendors - 145.78 180.43
Advance to employees 10.15 14.31
Prepaid Expenses 2307 33.82
Total 2,790.04 3,479.08
Nete 9: Inventaries {at lower of cost or net realisable value)

Raw Matenals 228 -
Work-in-Progress 83.71 -
Finished Gands and Traded Goods 1.766.34 558,77
Packing Materials 52,29 -
Stores, Spares, Dyas and Chemicals 0.43 -
Total 1,911.28 558,77

During the year ended 31 farch 2021, Rs. 36,81 Million (3% March 2020: Rs. 105.80 Milion) was recognised as an expense for inventories carried at net
realisable value.




WELSPUN GLOBAL BRANDS LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

Mote 10: Equity share capital and other equity

10{a) Equity share capital

Eﬁ] Authoriead share oapita$

Equity Shares of Rs. 10 angh

Numbor of Shares Amount
(Rs., million}
As ot April 5, 2039 2,50,00,000 25000
increase during the yoar - -
As ot March 31, 2020 2,50,0C,000 250.00
Increace during the year - -
As at March 31, 2021 2.50,00,000 250.90

{ii} Issupnd Subscribad and Paid up share capital

Edquity Sharas of Rs, 10 aach fully

paid up
Humber of Shares Amount
{Rs. million)
As at April 1, 2019 235294142 23520
Increase durlng the year - -
As at Karch 31, 2020 2,35,29,412 235.2%
Incresse during the year - -
As at March 31, 2021 235,20412 235.2%

Rights, prafarences and rostrictions attached to sharos

The Cernpany has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share. Each shareholder is efiglble for ono vato per share held. The
dividend in sase proposed by the Board of Directors is subect to 1he approval of 1ha shareholders In tha ensuing Annual General Meeting, except In
case of intsrim dividend. In the event of iiquidation, ihe equily sharehoiders are eligibla ta receive the remaining assets of the Company after

dlstrbution of alt preferential amounts, in proportion te their shareholding.

{il}} Shares held by hokling company

As at Karch 31, 2021

As= at March 31, 2020

Numbar of Shares Amaount Number of Shares Arnount
(Rs. million) (Rs. milllen)
tWelspun india Limited, the holding company
Equity shares of Rs. 10 oach, fully paid up 2,30,66,503 230.66 2,30,65,503 230.66
2,30,65,503 230.66 2.30,65,603 230.66

[} Details of sharshoiders holding mars than 5%
of shares in tha Company

As at March 21, 2021

As at March 31, 2820

Numbor of Shares

%

Humbar of Shares

%

Equity Shares @
Walspun india Limited

2,30,65503

98.03%

2,20,65,503

58.03%




Notes:

(a)

()

(c)

WELSPUN GLOBAL BRANDS LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

As at As at
March 31, 2021 Margch 31, 2020
{Rs. millian} {Rs. miltion)
10{b) Reserves and surplus
Securilies premium reserve {Refer Note (a) befow) 1.163.95 1,163.95
Capital Redemption Reserve (Refer Note (b) below) 144,65 10.00
Retained earnings (Refer Note {c) below) 1,643.16 1,252.89
2,951.76 2,426.85

a) Securities Premium

Balance as at the beginning of the year 1,163.95 1,163.95

Add : Addilions during the year - -

Balance as at the end of the year 1,163.95 1,163.95
b} Capital Redemption Reserve

Balance as at the beginning of the year 10.00 10.00

Add : Additions during the year 13455 -

Balance as at the end of the year 144 65 10,00
¢) Retained earnings

Balance as at the beginning of 1he year 1,252.89 847.87

Add : Profit for the year 475.87 414,45

Balance as atthe end of the year 1,728.76 1.262.42
Items of other comprehensive income recognised directly in retained earnings

Transfer to Capital redemption Reserve {134.65) -

Equity Component of preference Shares on redemption 50.70 -

Re-measurement gains on defined banefit plans, net of {ax (1.65}) {9.53)

Batance as at the end of the year 1,643.16 1,252.89
Total 2,851.76 2,426.84
10{c) Other reserves
Hedging reserve account [refer note (1) below} 33715 {976.95)
i} Hedging Resarve

{ross Balance as at the beginning of the year {976.95) 73548

Add : Gain/{Loss) recognised in sther comprehensive income during the year 1.618.21 {1.231.186)

tess: Amounts reclassified to profit or loss (136.91) 1,204.86

Gross hedging reserve before tax 71947 {1.700.54)

iess: Deferred Tax (442.02) 723.59

Net Batance as at the end of the year 33715 {975.95)

Nature and purpose of reserves

Securities premium
Secunties premium is used to recerd the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is ulilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Act2013,

Capital Redemption Reserve

Capital Redemption Reserve is created 1) when preference shares are redeemed aut of profits of the Company, a sum equal to the neminal amount
of the shares to be redeamed has to be transferred to this reserve and 2) when Company purchases its cwn shares aut of free reserves, a sum
equal to the nominal value of shares so purchased has {o be transferred to this reserve. This reserve may be used for issuing fully paid up bonus
shares to the members. {Refer note 11{a))

Hedging Reserve
The Company uses hedging instruments as part of its management of forelgn cusrency risk asseciated with its highly probable forecast sale and
inventory purchases and interest rale risk associated with variable interest rate borrowings as descrived within note 28. For hedging foreign
currency risk, the Company uses foreign currency forward contracts and foreign currensy option contracts, both of which are designated as cash
flow hedges.To the extent these hedges are effective; the change in fair value of the hedging instrument is recegnised in the cash flow hedging
reserve, Amounis recognised in the cash flow hedging reserve is reclassified to profit or loss when the hedged item affects profit or loss (2.g. sales
and intzrest payments). YWhen tha forecast transaction resulls in the recegnition of a non-financial asset (2.g.inventery), the amount recognised in
the cash flow hedging reserve is adjusted against the carrying amount of the nenfinancial asset.




-WELSPUN GLOBAL BRANDS LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

As at As at
March 31, 2621 March 31, 2020
{Rs. million} (Rs. million)
Ncta 11: Financial lizhilitias
11{a) : Other Equity
Equity Component of Compound Financial inslrumeits 60870 65040
600.70 660,40

11{a) Non-curent harrovings
Secured Loans
\Insecurad ;
Liability component of compound financiat instruments [Refer Note {a} and (b) below] 049 681 874,54
Non-¢ilrrent borrowings 949.61 874.54

{1} 1,389,575 0% Redeamabla Preferencs sharas

Profe shares are red: ible at par after 13 yoars and before 20 yoars with an oplion: of early redemption from tha date of aliotment i.e. Dacamber
7.2012

{ii} 1,000,000 1% Radi his C Profe shares

Pr shares arc red at par at the and of 13 years from the date of allatment i.e, Octaber 28, 2013,

{ili} 23,464,800 0% Redsemabla Cumulative #raference shares

Tho Company on Aprt 1, 2011 had issued 13,454,800 0% Redeemable Cumulalive Proferchen Shares {(RCPS] at {ace valua, Thase RCPS wera
redeemabla ot the expiry of 13 years from the dato of aliotment or al the option of tha Company, whichever is earlior. Thesa RCPS being financial
Instruments, for the purpose of praparation of the Ind AS financ|at stalements of the Company, were split into Equity Component and labilly component,
wherein Equity componient had beon presented on the face of the Balance Sheet {net of defarred tax) and liability component had boon presented at
amortized cost.

{On March 31, 2021, the Campany had exercised the optian for redermption of lhese RCPS at face value, out of the profils of the Company. Further
pursuant o this redempticn, 25 required under the Companias act 2013, the Company has croated Capital Redemption Resesve equivalent to face value
af such RGPS and Equity component of compound financial insliiments has been ransfered to Retain samings.

As at As at

March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020

Face Value of 0% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares - 134.65
Face Value of 0% Aedeemable Preference Shates 1,369.56 1,389.56
Face Value of 1% Cumulative Redeemahble Preference Shares 10.60 10.00
“Equity o it of 03 Cumuiath d ble Preference Shares - 76.82
“Equlty Camp of 0% fled ble Praf] Shares §917.39 817.39
*Equity p of 132 Cumutaté Preferenca Shares 6.26 626
475.91 533.74

Unwinding ef interast 47370 464.48
Non Current Barrowings 249.61 874.54
Less: Current maturities of Long-term Dabt [Refer Note 11(b}} - 123.68

“The equity compenenl of preference shargs has been prasented on the faca of the balance shost net of the deferred tax of Rs. 340.07 million,

11{a) Current borrowings

Securod
- Warking Capital Loans from Banks [Refer Note 11{a}{1)] 1,100.80 379.60
- Export bills discounted [Refer Note 11(a)2)] 2.528.57 1,787.55
Total currant borrowings 3,628,57 2,167.13

Note $1{a)}1): The working capial joans, which includes short term loans and cash credit from banks, are secured by hypothecation of inventaries and
beok debts and elhar current fnancial assels of the Company; chama on entire fixed assets of the C y and from Holding
Company.

Note $3(a)2}: Export bills are discounted with the banks and the ret amount after deduction of discaunting charges is tecaived by the Company. Onca
the bills are reallsed the same Is utilized to seitls the cutstanding amount with the bark.

11(b} Other non-currant financial liabiltles

Security Deposits 47 67 47.88
Total 47.67 47.88

11{b} Othar currant financial iiabllities

Liability component of compound financial instruments {Refar Note 11(a)] - 123.68
Mark-io-Market Liakility on Forward Coniracls - 1.3680.63
Security Deposils 433 -

Bank Overdralt - 141
Gthers - 18.00
Total 433 1,532.72

11{c}) Trada payahles

Total Outstanding Dues of Micto Emorprises and Small Enterprises {Refer Note 35) 128.53 33.ze
Total Outstanding Dues of Creditors other than Micro Enfarprises and Small Enterprises 11,086.29 10,681.49
Total 14,214.88 10,714,649

12 Non-current tax liabilities
Nen-cuerent tax liabilities {net) 74.93 -
Totat 74.93 -

Lo e o\
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WELSPUN GLOBAL BRANDS LIMITED

HOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

As A As Al
Harch 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
|Re. solllion) [R=. million)

Hata 12{a); Men-currant provisions
Prowvizon for litigation a7.38 26.02
Total 27.30 26.02

Nete 12{b) : Cusront provisions

Pravizion for fitpation - 058
Dividend ¢n Preferonza Shares and Tax theracn 0.18 0.18
Total 0.16 075
Provision for litigallon & excaplional expanzas Hen-currant Curront

As at April 1, 2020 24.e6 078
Charged! (creditod) to profit erioss 136 -
As 3t March 31, 2020 26.02 875
As at April 1, 2021 26,02 075
Charged! (creditad) to statemont of profit or loss 137 -
Provisfons utsed/adiusted dunng tha ysar - 059
As at March 31, 2021 27.39 0.18

(b} Prevision for litigation are ralaling (o disputed mattors parlaining tz Value Added Tex( VAT).

Nete 13: Dafarred tax lisbflitiss [Nat}

Defarred TaxLiabifiies atishg on account of lemporaty differencesin:

~On Cash Flow Hedges 11341 {32864}

- Classification of proference shara Liakillty in equity and ability at 108.12 129.78
Incapticn

=R of Post Emgt: bensfit obli (4.08) {353)
Delemred Tax Assol arfsing on account of temparary differencesing

« Evpensas inadmissible undar saction 40{a) of the incoma Tax Act, 1881 15.38 -

- Provizion for Emplayse Benshils 34.51 1B

- Depreciakion 1651 14.80

- Allowanze for Qoubtul Dehts! Advances 028 9.0
Total 14137 {24456}

Mavemant ir Deferred Tax as par ind AS

(Rs. million
Rameasurem Ciassification of
Provision | Expenses | OnCash ! ants of Post | Expanses |praferenca shara
Particulars Depraciation | D7Hoed BenE |eor pouptrulf inadmiasitt | Flaw ploy allowad on |Liability In squity|  Fotal
G dohis aufs 40a | Hedgss banefit paymsnt basls| and Hablllty at
obligation Inception
et April 2010 {21.89] (12.01) (8.79) (6.59)] 304,09 0.04 {36.24) 20185 §18.19
(Charged) / Cradited
o Profit and Loss 719 (63D} (0.33)] 6E5% - - 36.24 {#8.01) (3468}
> Other Comprahenzive Incoma [723.60} {447} (T28.07)
31st Harch 2020 14.80)| 118.34] {8.09)) - 2ze.61)| [5.53) - 129.78 | (244.56)
(Charged) / Credited :
to Picfit and Loss 471 16.20 {2 80} 1536 - - - 2186 £213
tn Othar Camprahsnsiva Incomes. - - - - (442.02) n.5e - - (451.46)
31zt March 2021 1251 34.51) 16.20) {1536 112,81 409} - 108.12 14137
Az At Aa At

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Hote 14: Currant employaa banefil obligation

Provizion for Compensated Abzonces (Refor Nata 21 ) 5486 a5.37
Provisien for Gratuity {Refar Nota 21) 24 27.39
Emplaysa Benafits Paysble” 11878 47.87
Total 250,88 120,63

* Includes salary leava rave! allowance and director commizsion.

Hota 15 : Currant tax lkabllitiss
Nen-curren! Lax lisbitities (nel) 32.39 33.30

Total 33.38 33349

Hola 16: Othar current lizbilities

Uneamed Ravenue 383 583
Advancos frem Cuslemers 153.40 86.36
Statuiery Duas. T4.72 134.37

Tota! 232.07 229.58
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WELSPUN GLOBAL BRANDS LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
{Rs. million) {Rs. million)
Note 17 : Revenue from operations
(a)Sale of Products
Finished Goods 62,378.75 54,749.28
Rebates, discounts, chargebacks, markdowns etc. {2.813.71) (2,222.73)
Sub total 59,465.04 52,526.55
{b)Other Operating Income
Exgport benefit {Refer Note below) 4,256.10 4,502.13
Sale of Scrap 186.80 -
Sale of Coal 79.20 -
Total 4,522.10 4,502.13
Total 63,987.14 57.028.68

Notes:

(i) Company receives Duly Drawback and Rebate of State & Central Taxes and Levies at specified rate on FOB value of exports.
Goi vide press release dated Decemnber 31, 2020 introduced ReDTEP scheme for all export goods with effect from January 1,
2021. Pursuant to above, the benefit under ROSCTL scheme has been withdrawn Considering that rales of RoDTEP are yet o be
nofified, the Company has not accrued income under the said scheme for the period Januasy 1, 2021 to March 31, 2021,

(&) Revenue from contracts with customers

1) Disaggregated revenue information

Set oul befow is the disaggregation of the Company’s revenue from coniracts with customers:

Year ended Year ended
Revenue March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
{Rs. million) (Rs. million})
India 6,188.09 4,162.60
Outside India 53,534.95 48,363.95
‘Fotal revenue from contracts with customers 59,731.04 52,526.55

2) Contract balances
The foliowing table provides information about receivables, contract assets and contract liabilities from contracts with customers

As at As at

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

{Rs. million) {Rs. millian)
Trade receivables™ 13,120.27 11,521.08
Contract liabilities (advances from customers) 163.40 85.36
Refund liabilities {Rebates, discounts, chargebacks, markdowns, ele.) 1,079.25 385.74
* Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 to 120 days.
3) Reconciliation of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the
contracted price

Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

(Rs. million} (Rs. million)
Revenue as per contracied price 62,644.75 54,749.28
Less: Rebates, discounts, chargebacks, maskdowns, etc. (2913.71) {2,222.73)
Revenue from contracts with customers 59,731.04 52,528.55
4) Reconciliation of revenue from operations with revenue from ¢ontracts with
customers

As at As at

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

{Rs. million) {Rs. million)
Revenue from operations 63,987.14 57,028.68
Less:Export Benefits 4,256.10 4,502.13
Revenue from contracts with customears 59,731.04 52,526.55




WELSPUN GLOBAL BRANDS LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
(Rs. million} {Rs. million}
MNote 18 : Other income
Interest income from financial assets measured at amortised cost
On Fixed Deposits 0.72 0.78
On Others 5.46 12.77
interget on Income Tax Rofund 22.36 B.77
Rent 1.08 -
Frofit on Redemption/ Sale of Units in Mutual Funds - 0.58
Liabiliies Writlen Back as no Longer Required 35.80 -
Profit on Canceliation of Forward Contracts (Net) 29,16 B
Exchange Gain (Net) " 422.42
Unwinding of discount an security deposits 3.20 4.26
Miscellaneous Income 8.79 3.05
Total 106.56 445963
Nota 19 : Cost of materials consumed
Raw material consumed
Opening inveniory - .
Add: Purchases {net) 8,036.81 -
Less ! Inventory at the end of the year 22.51 -
8,014.30 -
Packing material consumed
Opening inventary - -
Add: Purchases (net) §45.13 -
Less ! inventory at the end of the year 52.29 -
592 .84 -
Total B,607.14 -
Note 19 : Purchases of Stock-in-trade
Purchases of Stock-in-trade 49,946.83 50,293.10
Total 49,946.83 50,293.10

Note 20 : Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work-in-Progress and stock-in-trade

{Increaself Decrease in Stocks-in-frade
Stock at the end of the year

Woerk-in-Progress 69.71 -

Finished Goods and Traded Goods 1,766.34 5568.77

Total A 1,836.05 558.77
Less: Stock at the beginning of the year

Finished Goods 558.77 1,419.35

Total B 558.77 1,419.35

{Increase) | decrease in Stocks (A-B) {1,277.28) 860.58




WELSPUN GLOBAL BRANDS LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENYS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 3t, 2021

Hote 21 : Employes Bancfits Exponse

{Rs. in miion)
Yaar sndad Yoar andad
Hareh 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Salaries, Wapes, Akswansos and Other Bonafits 1283.90 BES.82
Graluiy and ex-gralia 4503 38.1E|
Contritution to Provident ard Othat Furds 7460 520
Managerial Remunzration 37.7¢| 28.34
Etofl ond Labair Wellars 11.74 18.33)
1459.05] 1022.70;
Tha Company has classified tha various bensfits provided te amployoes as undar:
1 Defined Gontributions Plans
(Rs. inmilion)
During tha year tha Company has. tha intha of Profit and Loss Year snded Yoar anded
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
- Employar's Contributionto Providant Fund* 38.28 3334
- Emplayer's Condriutiante Stale | o 604 158
- Empiayer's Conttbulion 1o Empioyess Pansion Schama® 28N 14 48]
- Ernployers Canuibutian to Superanauation Sthams” 1.63 2.84
74.60] 52.01
*included in Contritadion o Provident and Otber Funds
Il Definad borafit plan
Contribution to Gratuity Fund {Fundad Dafined Benstit Plan)
o, Major assumpticns Asat As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Discount Rle 6 50| E.£3%
Expected rale of return on Flan Assets 6.90% B6.84%|
Salary Escalation Rate & 550%paforthea { 650%pa. fortha
ned 5 yaars 5.00% | ned S yeats 5.00%
p.a. thereattar, p.a. thereafiar,
statling from Lha €th | stading from tha 6th
o ool
|Rato of Empioyse Turnaver Feor servico 0 years | For service 2 years
and balow 27.00% | and below 8.00%
p&. For sarvice 1 p.a Faor ssrvica 3
years ta 2 years yoars 12 4 yaars
8.00% pa. For 6.00% pa. For
service Ayoars bo 4 [ sotvica 5 years snd
yoars 3.00% pa Fori above 4 08%pa.
service 5 years and
above J00% p.a.
Mertality Rate Duriy Employment Indian Assured Lives |indian Aszured Lives
Mottally (2005-08)  |Mortality {2005-08)
& Tha estimatas for fubiita ssfaty intreasss considered taking inta account tha inflation, senierity, pramation and othar selavant factars.
(Rs. in milion)
N - As at Asat
b. Changa in the presant valus of chligation March 31, 2024 March 31, 2020
Opening Present valua of Oliigaton 58,16
Cutrand sapvice cost S60)
Linh#ty Transferred iy Acquistions -
Interast cost 5.20)
EBanafit Paid Directy by ha Employer -
Sansfit pad (837

Astuarial Gains on Cbiigations - Dus to Change in Bemogaphéa

Actuarial Lozses an Obiigations - Dua to Exparisnce

Arluarial {Gainsiosses on Qbligatons - Due W Changs in Financial Assumplion

Glosing prosant valua of Obi

c. Changa infair valte of plan azzsts

Opening Far valus of Plan Assals

Irterect ncome

Raturn on Plan Assets, axsluding amounts Included in interast income
Benafia paid

13229
{Rs. inmilion)
As at Asat
Harch 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

60.70 B4 64;

4.15 5.02

0.25 0.41

(5.26} (9.37)]

Cinsing Falr Valua of Pian Asssls

5%5.83 60,70

{R5. In milion)

d. Balanze Shoot Reconclifation

Cparing Nal Liabity

Expanses Recognzed in Statement of Profit or Loss
Expansas Recogrized in OCE

Nel Liabdty Transfer In

Bonaft Paid Direclly by the Emplaver

Mat Liability Racognised Intha Balanca Shoat

As at Asat
March 31, 2021 Karch 34, 2020

27.2% 252
16.92; 9.87)

an 14,00
2861 -
(1.73}) -
724 2735




WELSPUN GLOBAL BRANDS LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

(A5 in mifian)

. As at As &t

©. Amount recegnisad in the Balance shaot March 31, 202% Harch 31, 2620
Prosart vaiue of Oblgaticn 132.29| B30T
Fair Valus of Flan Asssls 5983 &0.70|
Funded Stalus Tz41 2725
ol liabEity Recognised intha Balance Sheat and included under amphyae benalit obligation {rafer nole 14} T2.44 2725
MNon Gurrort Portion T2.41 73
Currant Portion - .

(Rs. in mitzn)

- . Year ended Yaar endad
f. Exponses recognized in tha statement of profit and loss March 3%, 2021 March 31, 2020
Curremd service ¢ost 14.07 960
interast cost 1.87 027
Tolal E ized intha of profit and loss* %£5.94 9,87

= Included in Emplayes Bansfits Expurse

{Rs. inmdion}

‘Year ended Year ended

5. Exponsas recognlzod in tha Othar Comprehensiva Incoma Warch 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Ra-measuramant

Actuarial Losses on Qbligatian For Lha year 250 1440
Raturn on Plan Asssts, Exciuding interest Incoma {0.29} {041}
Met E: for tha year R ized in OCI 221 13.89

b, Sansitivity anatysls:
Tha sansitivity of the defined bonsfit cbligation t2 changes in the waighted principal aszumptions is.

{Rs. in milion)
Increasaf{decreasa) in doftnad bamfit

Particuiars Changa Ih Assumptions abligations
Mazrch 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Discount Rale Incisase by 1% {12.56) {717)
Diseount Rate Decreass by 1% 14.65 827
Salary Incroass Increase by 1% 1460 228
Salary Increase Decrease by 1% (1282 (7.31);
Empioyee Tumaver Ingraase by 1% 2.30 1.03
Employes Turnover Decrease by 1% (2.€5) (1.17)

The above sensitivily analyzes are bazad on a changa in an assumplonwhia holding all ather assumptions conatant Tn praclica, Lhis is untkely (o ecsur, and
changes In sama of he assumptiang may ba correfatsd. When caleuizting the zensithvily of the defined banafit etiigatian to signficant acksarial assumptions (ha
sarma mathod (prosant vaiua of tha dafined banafi obl; with the proj urst ceedit mathed st the and of tha reporting penicd) has besn
applizd as whan calcitaling Lhe definad banafil Fabity ascals recagrsed intha balanze sheet

“Tha methcds and types of ossumplions used in preparing tha senzsilivly analysis did nol change eampated to the priar poricd

i, Major Catagery of Plan Assat 25 a % of Total Flan Assats As at Harch 39, 2024 As at March 31, 2020
Quotad % Quoted %
{Rs. million) {R=. million]
insurer Managed funds 5388 10060 EB.70 106.00

Doafinad banafit labllity and employar contibutions

The Company furding lavels are menitered on snannual bass and the surent agreed cordribution rate is 12% of the basic salzries Further funding is dona only
for employees moro than 5 years inthe firm, for less than Byears amplayoas ato paid separalsly.

Exparied contriations iz post-empioyment bansfi plans for the yeararding 31 March 2022 ate Rs. 56.69 milon

Tha weightat average duratien of the defined bensfit obigation is 12 years {2020 -10 years). Tha prpeclad malurity anelysis of undiscounted graluity s as
Tollows:

{Rs. in m3ion)

Particuiars Lass thans Botwoen 1-{ Between 2+ 5 years Bolwean 6- 10 11 years & Abova Totat
year 2 yaars years

March 31, 2021
Defined boneft obtigation izz2 564 17.37 4667 241.67 323.47
Total 1222 554 1737 4687 241.67 32347
HMarch 31, 2020
Dafired bonafil otligaton 4.0 478 19.58 az.18 12188 18310
[ Total 4,90 4.78 18.58 EFAL 12166 18310

Othar Employos Banefit
The labity for componsated absonces as at year end s Rs. 64,63 milion (March 31, 2020 Rs. 45.37 millan)




WELSPUN GL.OBAL BRANDS LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

Note 22 ; Depreciation and Amortisation Expense

Depreciation proparty, plant and equipment

Amortisation on intangible assels

Depraciation Right of Use Assets (ROU} {Refer Note 31)
Total

Note 23 ;: Other Expenses

Stores and Spares Consumed

Job Work Expenses

Sates Commission

Freight, Forwarding and Coolie Charges
Advertising and Sales Promotion
Electricity Expenses

Repairs and Maintenance - Others
Direclors' Sifting Fees

Contract Labour Charges

Rent {Refer Nota 31)

Warehouse Expenses

Rates and Taxes

Printing and Stationery

Travelling and Conveyance

Lega! and Professional Charges
Insurance

Communication

Postage and Courier

Loss on Salef Discarding of Fixed Assets (Net)
Provision for Doubtful Debts/ Advances
Exchange Loss Provision MTM
Exchange Loss {Net}

Bad Debis! Advances Written off
Product Testing Charges

Royaity

Provision far Impairment

Donalions

Payments o auditors {Refer note 23 {a) below)
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses {Refer Note 23 (b) balaw)
Miscellanecus

Tofal

Mote 23 (a} : Details of Payments {c auditors

Payments to auditors
As auditor:

Auditfee

Tax audit fee

In Other capacities
Certification fees
Re-imbursement of expenses
Total payments to auditors

Note 23 (b} : Details of CSR expenditure

(i) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year
{ii} Amaunt spent during the year

(a) Constructionfacauisilion of any asset

(b} on purposes other than {a) above

Hote 24 : Finance costs

Preference shares at amortised cost
interest on Working Capital Loans
Interest to Others

Interest on Lease fiabilities
Disceounting and Bank Charges
Total

Year Ended Year Ended

March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
{Rs. mililon} {Rs. miltion)

7.88 7.28
7.83 847
102.35 42.74
118.08 5849

18.48 -
14.76 0.05
T02.40 785.88
1,873,414 1,170.08
406.29 a02.81
7.09 15.81
91.18 71.88
1.88 1.75

3.77 -
16.76 27.94
73,25 78.10
3.27 24.25
0.39 1.21
2585 229.24
356.66 292,81
44.68 30.76
4.37 215
3246 44,12
3.82 0.03
14,38 7.88
- 84.08

121.44 -
2.4 4.75
77.59 67.20
128.00 114.00
- 140.00

1.16 -
428 4.16
13.27 13.37
50.58 63.68
4,893.39 4,178.01
3.50 3.50
0.45 .45
0.18 0.13
B.15 0.08
4.28 4.16
13.27 12.65
13.27 13.37
86.04 79.19
122.08 138.42
3.04 252
32.03 8.26
203.73 260.80

446.92




WELSPUN GLOBAL BRANDS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

Note 25 : Exceptional items

The Company received final approval from teial court dated October 28, 2019 for its settiement agreement which is intended to
resclve aft pending legal claims in the United States concerning past marketing and tabeling of the Company’s premiurm cotton
home textife products. Accordingly, the management based on expert advice has reversed the unutilized provision aggregating

Rs. 2.58 million during the previous year.

Note 26 : Income tax expense

This nate provides an analysis of the Company's income fax expense, show amounts that are recognised directly in equity and
how the tax expense is affected by ner-assessable and non-deductible items. It also explaing significant estimates made in

relation {o the Company's tax positions.

Pursuant te the changes in the tax rates, with effect from Aprit 1, 2019 the Company has opted for lower tax rates

a) Staternent of Profit and Loss {Rs. miltion)
As at As at
March 31, 2021 | Barch 31, 2020
Income tax expense
Current Tax
Current Tax on profits for the year. 24268 179.10
Adjustment for current tax of prior periods 36.17 -
Total current tax expense 278.85 179.10
Deferred Tax
Decrease (Increase) in deferred tax assets (33.47) 43.40
{Decraase) increase in deferred tax liabili#ies (21.66) (78.08)
Total deferred tax expense (55.13) (34.66)
[ncome tax expense 223.72 144.44
Income tax expense is atiributable to :
Profit for the year 223,72 144.44
223,72 144.44

{b) Other Comprehensive Income {OCH)

(Rs. mitlion)

March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020

Deferred gain/{loss) on cash flow hedges {442.02) 723.59
Met foss/(gain) on remeasurement of defined benefit plans 0.58 4.47
Total {441.46) 728.08
(c) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's tax rate

{Rs. milliory)

Asat As at

Profit for the year hefore income tax expense

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

699.59 $58.89

Tax at the Indian tax rate @ 25.17% 176.0% 140,67
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating taxable

Corporate social responsibility expenditure 3.63 1.68

Provision pertaining to earlier years 36817 -

Interest on Welspun Mauriius Enterprises Limited loan 6.74

Impact en account of change in {ax -

Impairment of investments -

Other ltems 1.09

Income Tax Expenses

223.72




WELSPUN GLOBAL BRANDS LIKITED
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Note 27 : Falr valua measwrements
Finanelal instrumeants by category

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
FVYPL F¥oCI Amoitisad cost FVPL FvGcl Amottised cost
Financlal assats
Invastmants
- Qlhers 053] - - 280 B -
Trada racsivables | - 12.120.27 B B 11.521.9%
Securily Depotits - - 12745 - - 126.47]
Cash and cash equivalonts and ather bank balarce - - 73787 - - 595331
Govarement Grants 173.69] 156.62]
tdark-lo-Markel gain (Nel) on Forward/ Swap Contrazls - 742.88) - g | |
Cihets 27749 10.00)
Total finanzial assels 0,99, 71288, 14,436.47| 2.8D; -] $2,615.13] -
Financial liabllities
Bonowings - - 4.578.1g] g R 2.041.68
Trade payables - -] 11,214 88 E E 10.714.65{
Socirity Daposds - - 52.00) E E 47.88
Markolo-Marke! Less en Forwand Centrasts B B 4 E 128265 -
Oibata 29156 53.96)
Total financial Fabllitles o g 16,136.65, - 1,369,63] 13,858,24
(i) Fair valua of Fipancial assats and liabiitlas moasurad at amoriisad cost
{Rs. mélian)
31-Mar-21 I1-Mar-20
‘E;?;:lﬁ Falr Valua |Carrying Amount Falr Valua
Financial Assets
Investmants
Security Doposis 12118 12745 12517 12547
[Trads recoivablns 1342027 | 1312027 11,521.08 152109
Governmant Grants 173863 17268 456.62 156 62
Cash and Cash squivalents T3rer 73t ey 59331 58331
Othars 27143 27748 1500 19.00
Tatal 1443647 | 1443647 12.815.18 1281618
Financhal liabilitles
ings (i ing Liablity P of ¢ d frsncial instrumants) 457818 4570.29 3041569 2.83049
Secutity depasds mota than 12 manths E2.00 52.00 47.88 47.88
Trads paysties 1421488 | 1121488 10,744,589 1071469
Qihars. 2h.59 20155 53.98 53.98
Total 18,13G.65§ 16,128.78 13,858.24 13,797.04
The camying ameunt of rads recan cash and cash equivalen's and other bank batanges, curront loans. other currert financia) assats, oiher currert financial liab3ities and trada payabls are consideted lo be the sama as
e valus, dus Lo Lhar shorf-lerm nature. Also, the carrying omoun! of short term ing is i I3 ba app y s2ma as its far valus dua to #'s short-term nalute.

Tha fair value for security dapesits was calcufaled based on cash lows discounted using o cumen! lending rates. They are classified as lavel 3 fair valua In the far vatue herarehy dug to b inclusion of unabservable inputs
inciuding courtetpatty credit risk.

The fair vshies of the company’s interest-bearing ings and toans are by using BCF methad vweing disceunt rata What reflects the issuer's borrowing rote as al the end of the reporting patiod.
For financial aszols and kabiities that ate maazued at far valug, tha carrying amounts ara equat o the fay values,

(if} Fair valug hisrarchy

This =pction explaing (o and ast rada it ining the far values of the financials instrumants that are {a) reccgnisad and maasired af fair valus and {b) masswred at amortised cost and for whish fak
vakes aro d d in tha financial To provido anir jan absul the refiatity of the inputs used in delermining fair vafua, tha company has classified its linancial instrumants into tha wea lavels pressribed under
tha acecunting standard. An axpianation of each level feifows underneath L tabla.

(Rs. miian)

[Financial assets and lahilities measurad at fair vafua - racurting
fais value moasuremonts Rotas Laval ¢ Lavol 2 Lovel 3 Tatal
At March 31, 2021
Financlal assats :
Financlal Imveatmants at FVPL

{rvesiments-Cthars G{a} - .83 +] oge
Derivatlvas designatod as hadgas

Kark-ta-tarket Gainon Forward Conkacts [H] -] 71289 + 71288
Total flnancial assats -| 713,87 - 74387

Financiat fiabilitias
Barivatives dasignated as hadges

Mark-to-Market Loss on Fonward Contracts 11{b) R B . 4
 Total financial Mablitias -] -] - B
(Rs. mitan)

Asmets and liabilities which are measurod at amortised cost for

which fair valuas are disclosad Natos Lavel 1 Lava 2 Leval 3 Totat

AL Karch 34, 2021

Financial assots

Sacurity Doposits Ble) B o 127 18 127.15
Teade recaivables Gidy - - 1312827 13.120.27]
Governmant Grants B{c) - - 47369 17369
Cazhand Cash equivafants &le) - - 737 BI, TOT.ET|
Clears €{g). Bib} -] E 277,49 Z77.45]
Tetal financlal assats 4 oL 14,426.47] 14,436.47|
Firencial Liabititlos

Bermowings 11{a) B - 4570 2% 4.570.25]
Secwrity deposs for mare than 12 manths 14{p) - - £2.00] 52.00]
Trade payabies 1e) «| 11214 EE 11.214 BB
Qthars 291.55] 291 56

Totat firanciat liabilitios -| 46,128.7§ 1§,128.75|
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[Financial assets and llabillGas moasurad At farr valua - racuring
falr valia maasuramants Notes tavet 1 Lawot2 Lowal 3 Total
At March 31, 2020

Financlal assats

Firancial Invastmants at FYPL

fnvestments-Others. G{a) - 260 E 26D
Darhvativas designated a5 hadgos
Mark-to-Markat Gainon Forward Contracls Ela) - E - -
Total financlal asssts | 2.60] o 2.60)
Financlal Nabilif
Dorivatives dosignated as hodgas
Mark-ta-Market Less en Forward Contrasts 11} | 1.380.63) - 138963
Total financiaf liablitios . 1,3589.63 - 1,389.63;
{Rs. mition}
Assats and Hablilfties which ara moasurad at amortisad cost{or
which falr valuas are disclosad Notes Loval 1 Lavet 2 Laval 3 Totat
At March 31, 2020
Finanzlal assols
Sacurity Dapasits &{c) g - 125.57 125,17}
Trade recovables. &(d} B - 11.521.08) 11.521.089)
Govarnmant Granis it ] - - 165 62 156 67|
Cash and Cash equivalania B o) B - 533.3t 59331
Others ECH - - 18.00 18.00
Totalfinancial asseis E -1 12,815,19, 12.815.14|
Financlal Liabiiltlos
Boowings 111a) i - 2,550.45] 2.580.45]
Sacurdy daposis for mota than 12 menths 11(k) B . 47.8E] 47.821
Trade Payabia 11ic) 10,714 65 16.714.65]
Othars. 53.9§] 53,98
Total financiat liablillies - «|  43raro4 13,787.04|

Tha fofowing table providas an analysis of financial nstrumants that are maaswnd subsoquant to indial recognition at far valus. grouped Into Lavel 110 Level 3, a5 dascribed balaw,

Level 1: This hierarchy includes firancial instrumants mosasured using qualed prices, This includas listed aquity instuments, exchange traded funds and mutual funds that have quoled prics. The far value of &if equity
Instrumients which arg fraded in the sieck exchangas is valued using the closing price a5 at the reporling peried. Tha mutual funds ars valued using tha clasing Net Assols Value {NAV). NAV repressnis tha price at which the
issuet wil issuo furlher units and wil redoem steh uréits of mutual fund to and from Lhae investors,

Level 2: Ths far valua of financial instrumants that aro not radad in an aslive markat {such as traded bonds, debantutes, go secwrities and ial papots) i ined using Flmd Incomo Mumy tdarket and
Derivatives Association of India (FIMMDA) inputs and vahuation lachniquas which maxmize Lho wss of observabie market data and rely as itfle as possitia on entity-spesific est . C ing that alt Inplds
required 12 fai vahus such insbrumants are okservabie, thess sra included inlave! 2.

Valuations of Level 2 instrumanis can ba verfiad to recent trading activity for kianlical or simdar i . broker of dealer K ive pricing sowces with favels of prica y. G
Is ghven 1o the ralure of the quotatons {e.g., ndicative or fem} and Iha relalionzhip of recant market activity 1o tha prices pravided I’mm.ulterna\_rva pricing sourTes,
Lovel 3 If ona or more of e sigrificant inpuls i not based on observably markel data, ha instrumant is included intevel 3.

Thero ara ro infernat rancfers of firancial azsels and financial kabdities belwean Lavel 1. Lovet 2 and Lavel 3 during Lhe periad. Tha Company's poliey is 1o recogniso transfers into and transfers out of fair valus hizrarchy levat
as ai tha end of raporting perisd.

i) Valuati hinl usad to i falr valua

Specific veluslion techniques used to valua finansial instruments include:

-tha use of quoted markel piicas o dealsr guotss for simEar instrumants

-the fa valua of Terward foreign exchangs contracts is deotermined using forward exchange rates at tha batance sheat date.

fv} Valuaticn Inputs and ralationships te fair value
The fellowing tatte summarisas the quantdative information about the sgnificant unobsarvable inputs used inleval 3 far valus measuremants. Sea (1) shave for (ha walualion lechniques adopled

Falt Valuo (Rs. milllon) Signiflcant Prohakility-walghtod rangs
Particulars urabsarvablo Sensitivity
H-Mar-21 I1-ar-20] inputs® -Kar-21 31-Maz-20

Match 31, 2021 - Increase in discount facior hy|
50 basis poinls (bps} would decreasa face
value by Rs. 1885 milion and decreass in|
discount rate by 50 bps wowld increasa face
vaiue fry Rs. 19.28 mition,

g::c::fg:{: 8%-10% S%-10% March 31, 2028 - Increasa in diszount factor by|
50 basis paints (bps) would desrenss face
value by Hs. 2131 mifion and dscrease inj
discourd rate by 50 bps would increase faca)
valua by Rs. 2158 milion.

Prafarance Shates 89541 63702

v) Valualion processas :
The finange dapartment of tha Company includes a team that perorms the valuabions of finanzial assels and kabiftias requred for fmangial reporling plrposas. including teval 3 fak valuas.
This team reparta directly to the Chisf Financial Officer (CFO).

Discuzsions of valuation procasses and rasulls are hotd bstyean Ihs CFO, and Iha valuation team at feast ance every three rorths. in ine with campany's quarterly raperts.
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WELSPUN GLOBAL BRANDS {I4TED

NOTES TO THE FIRANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 34, 2021

The Comgany's astivilias expose 4 fo markel risk, bawdily risk and credit risk. Inorder lo meineza any advarse sffects of the firanciad performanca of 1ha Comparny. derhalivas fmancis! instrumants, such as {oreign exchange contracts ara artered
Lo hadga cartain foreign currancy risk axposire. Darivalives are ured sxshnivaly for hedging purpese and rot a5 trading or specuatia instrumants

this note expiain the sowces of risk whish tha entity is exposed {o and how ths entity marages ths risk and impact of hedge accourting inthe finamciat statormarts

Risk

Exposura atising from Heasuramaont Manapomant
Credlil sk Cashand cashequvalents, rads receiablas, Aging aralysis Diversificatonef bark depasits. credit fimis and Istlers of credi. instrancs for
darhative financial instruments, financial asssts catlain fade recnimbles
measured at smertsed cost
Liquidity risk rﬁ“orwwms and other Eabdities rlic!l‘;ng cashilow foracasls Asatabiity of d credit Eres and b faciities

Harksl nzk - loragn exchanga

Fidure carmeteial tansaciions ﬁ’accumsa

indan Rupea (INR)

firancial assots and Rabktias nol derominated in

Cah liaw 10rocasting Sersamty GRS

Forward Foreign Exchanga Conlracls

The Company's risk maragement is carried out by the Risk Managemant cammitias, under polias approved by the Board of Brectors. Company Risk b

11

identfios, ard bedges financial risk thclose cooperation

wilh Campaty's respective dapartment heads. Tha Buatd provides policy for overall risk mamngemart, as well as polcies covarimg specdic arpas, suchas foraign axchangs 1isk, inderost rate risk, credit risk, use of derivalive financial inslrumants
and ren-deriative financial instruments. and invastmant of excess Iqudiy.

[A) Crodit risk

Credit 7isk arizes from cash and cash equivalents, investmants carriad at amoitised cos! and depasits with banks and financial institutions, a5 weld as credid axposwes to whelcsaln

{ Crodit Risk Managemant

5 including iy

Credit risk is Ihe risk that counerparty wi not meel its obligabian ender a fnancial instrumant or custiomar cortract, leading 1o a financisl koss. The Company is exposed Lo credit risk from its operaling astivitios (prirrarily rade recohablas) and

from iis fnancing activlizs, including depasits with bark and financial

foreign tr

and other financial instrmens.

The Company datermines defaul by considering tha busiess amvzenmand inwhich ha Company opsrates and cthar macra-ecenonsc fastors, The company considers the probabity of dafault upsn kslial recogntion of assst and whather thare
has been a significant increase incredit risk on an angoing basis Wroughout each teporting peried. To assess whelher there i & signficant ircrease in ored risk the company compares tha risk of a defawt occurring on the assel as at tha
rapotling dale with tha risk of default as al the data of intial tatogrtion. K considers ressonabls and supperlive forwarding-eakay infarmation such as:

i} Actual or expected siprifcart advatse changes in businsss;
i} Actual or expecled sigrificant changea inthe cpetaling resuls of the courlerparty;
) Firanckal or sconomis conditions Lhat are expected to cause a sirdivant change 1o the counterparly’s abilily lo mest is obigations;

W) Sigrdicand inereass In credd rink on olher finarcial i

of the sama

) Sigrificant changes intha valua of the colatetal supparting Ihe obiigation of in the quafity of tha third-parly guarariees

Finarcial assels are writlen off when here is ro reasorabin expeclation of recovery. sbehas a debtor fading to ongaga ina repayment planwith ihe company.

Trada Receivable

Trade recaivabias are lypicaly unsecured and are dorfved from revanua earned from custamets. Credit risk has been managed by tha Company through credit approvals, estabizhing credit limits and contiruausly manstoring the

creditworiiinass of customers 1o whish tha Campary grants credit lerms in (ha nommal cowrsa of business, credit inslrance fot partes whers a Kghar ctedit rigk &

4. On account of adopt! f ind AS 108. ha Campany uses expactad

credit loss model 1o azsess the imparment loss or gain The Company wses a provision matrix and fonward-laoking information and an assessmant of tha credit fisk ovar e expacted e of tha linanciad asset o computa the expecled credd

loss atowarce for trads receivables.

Cancertrations of credit risk with respecl (o rade receivablos ara fmited, dua lo the Company's customar baza being large and diversa Tha lofiawing tabla gives detals in respect of pamcentage of revonua generated from Lhe tap ten

cuslomers.

[Fanicufars

For the yoar efdod
Mareh 34, 2021

Fot the yaar endad
Mazch 31, 2020

Ravanus from top ten customsrs

T443%

Othsr financial azssts

Tre Campany mairiains exposura incashand cash aginatards. term deposis wilth banks, Dertativa mncial instrurrents, imvestmants in governmerd

and bonds, and i in mual funds. The Company has diersified

porfalia of investmant with various number of countar-gartios wiich have good credit ralings, good repitalion, geod past irack records and reviews and hanca the risk is reduced. Individual risk fimits ate st for nach counter-party based on
finarelal position, efedi rating ard pas! experience. Gredit kmits end concentration of exposwes are actrely monitored by tha Company.

Againg of Trada receivables Is as folows

As at March 31, 2021 {Rs.méion)
Agoing Lezs Than 3 Manths | 3 tonths 1o 6 Menths | Above & Mfonths Total
Gross Carrying amount 11.414.99 127567 45459 12,145.25
Expacled bss rata 0.02% 0.08% 4 B7%| 0.18%:
[ Allovearer for doubtfid dably 1.82 1.01 2215 2498
Carrying amaunt of trads recalvaties 141397 1,274.66 432,44 3,020.27
(rot of impairment)
Az at March 31, 2020 {Rs. mfion}
Agsing Lasc Than 3 Months | 3 Manths ta & Moaths | Absve  Months Totat
Gross Carrying amourd 9.311.14 1.743.48 494.69 11.559.31
Expected loss rale - - 5.70% 0.24%|
Afawanca for doubthd debts - - 2822 2822
Carrying amount of trads racshrablas 939144 1,743.48 46647 11.524.00
{nat of impatrment)
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R iliatlan of loss B - Trada recaivabi

(Ra.mdion}

Amaount

Allowanes for doubtiul debls on Apill 01, 2048 2508
Expected Creditfoss recognised 7.88
Written off during the year 475
Alowancs for doubtful dabts on March 31, 2020 .22
Expected Credit loss recogresed 14.38
Wrinten off during the year 17.62
Allowance for doublful dabts on Klarch 31, 2021 24.98

Tha Cempany mitigates ds credi risk rewling s sules oidber under documantary letler of credit or are under cover of credR nsiranca paloy.

(B} Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers Lo the risk thal the Campany wil encounter difficully in meateg obigations assacialed with finarcial liab3ies that are setled by detivering cashior other financial assets. Tha Company ranages liquidity tisk by maintaning

adequate reserves, barking faciities amd resene borewing faclites. by continucusly monitering forecast and actual cashifiows and by matching the matteity prolzas of ficangial azssls and Babiitias.

() Financing arrangamants

The Compary had aqgass ta Lbe falcwing undrawn bormowing fasiitios at the ard of tha reporting periad:

(Rs.millicn)
s at 3-Mar-21 34-Mar-20
Fund Basod ton Fund Basad Fund Based Hep Fund Basad
E>piring with eria yeat {Export bs ducounting, Bank overdraft alz.) 3.746.61 g460 4.218.13 51184
3,746.61 B4.60 4,218.13 511.04%

Tha bank overdraft fac&lias may be drawn al any tima ard may ba terminated by Wha bark without notza

{ii} Maturitios of Financial liabilitias

The tabios below analyse the Campary's financial tiabities into relevart, maturity groLpings based on their cortractual maturities for:

« a1 rean detivative finareiat Bablities, and

- mot ard grezs setied derivative Tmancial instrumants tor whish lha cantrachual maturitiss are essential for an understanding of (ha tiving of the cash Nows.

The amounts disclosed intha labie ata the contracleal undiscourted cash fiows

As at March 34, 2021 (Rs.milion}
Conlm‘:\u‘zl Ta.turillns of Hon durivativas Loss than 2 Months | 3 months 1o 6 months | 6 months to 1 year Bﬂm;:’;::"d 2 Buhm';un::;and s Bayond & yaars Total
Eorrowis a.18551 45115 - - 1.388.55 10.00 §,036.22
Trado payables 11,214 86 - - - . - 11,214.86
Other financial fiabdities 433 - - 4767 - - 52.00
Lease Labiities 3851 20.55 7626 11815 7840 - 340,87
Tatal 14,443.21 483.70 76.26 165.82 4,467.96 10.00 16.652.95
As at March 31, 2024 {Rs-maion]
Derivative Financial Inslrumanis {based on contractad ratas) Lo=s than 3 Months | 3 months to 6 months | 6 months to $ yoar Botwean1and2 | Botwaon 2 and S Beyond § years Total
years yaars
Forward contracts USD- INR B,534.51 9.288.88 18376 .48 - - . 35.809.67
Forward contracts EUR- INR 163.62 145.68 - - - - Ho.za
Forward contracls GBP- INR 6141 6194 - - - - 123 35
== 8,359.34 B,507.48 18,376.48 - . - 36,243.30
As at March 31, 2020 {Rs.milicn}
r: * N ! N t of Non dorh Less than 3 Months | 3 menths to 6 months | 6 months to 1 year Setwoan 3 and 2 Botwean 2 and 3 Boyend 5 yoars Total
financial liabiitiss years years
Bonowings 2.188.87 - 124.65 - - 1,393 58 3,702.08
Trade payables 10.714.68 - - - - - 10,714,638
Othar firarelal fiabitios 18.4% . . 47.28 - - B7.2%
Lease Liabdities 779 5.48 1005 16.21 029 - 3582
Total 32,840.75 5.48 144.70 €4.08 £.29 1,398.56 1452487
As at March 3%, 2020 (R, miflion}
Dervalive Firancial Instrumerts (based en contractad rates)] Less than 3 Months | 3 menths to € manths | £ manths to 4 yoar Be‘wz:::;"d z Bahw;nr;;and s Boyond 5 yaars Total
Forward eonlracts USD- INR 7.907.18 8.083.18 1372578 - . - 30,722.14
Forward cantracts EUR INR 9750 48.8 - - - - 14578
Fonward cordracts GRP- INR 71.08 3329 - - - - 104,28
i Tolal 8,076,17 9,470.39 $3.726.78 - - - 3097338

(C) Market risk
{}} Forelgn curzency risk

Foraign currency risk is (he risk that the fair value er future cash fiows of anexposwre wil flucluate bacause of changes in foreign exchanga rates. The Gompany's axpasiee 1o 1he risk of changss in foreign exchango rates relates primariy to

{he Compamy’s revarue domminated in a fareign curency,

This foreign currancy risk & hadged by using forsign currancy forward contrasts. During the year the Compay Fas rovised s foreign axchange tisk management siralegy. On accourt of charga in stralegy thers s a mal gainof Re. 26231

Mizen intha staloment of Profit and Less for tha year arded March 31, 2621,

As par tha new strategy. the Company marages iis foreigncisrency risk by dasignating fonward contrazls a3 hadging nstrumaris againet

- HigHy probabie forecasted sales inforeigncurrercy be. lowaids fultze stiss where comaspenrding exposura is yot (o ba recordsdd in (ko bocks {(for anintial part of thy lerwe of Lha cortracl). and
= Pagl of rada resehvalies inforeigncuwrrency (for balanca parl of ha teree of contracl)

Frther, tha Company setifes thase forward cortracts with banks by utilising it againet tha reafisations far pocl of rads recsivatias in foreign currancy.

Az at March 31, 2021 the Company hedged 61.18% of its expacted foreigncurtancy salss for tha naxt § months (March 31, 20200 65.04% of is expacted foreign curtaroy sales fof nexd 12 manhs).
As at March 31, 2021, the Carmpany bedgad G7.10% of &s foraign csrercy rade recelvabiss (March 31, 2020: M)

{a} Foralgn curransy rsk axposura

The Company's unhedged expesire 1o foraign currency risk at the ard of the repsriing paried is as foliows

1Rs, mizion)
31-Mar-21 35-Mar-20
usn EUR Cthers* Ush EUR Others*

Financlal Aszets
Trade Receivatios'® 1143248 16102 B9.24 10.474.73 48.28 3104
Foraign exchangs forwerd conlracts -7.803.05 - . - - -
Fet axposits fa forain currency Feh 3.535.43 101.02 BaAd 16,474.7 43.28 34,04
Financial lizbiitlas N
Trade Payaties 261338 028 ¢ st 262135 124 3229
Botrowings- Currgnt™” 252867 - - - 178785 - -
Het axgosirs to farskgn eurrancy risk 5.441.95 v.29 5837 4,480.90 1.24 3828
(lE2kilitlas)
?}c%nxpnsums {assets-Habilitias) -

!{‘ oo iniiios) [1,506.52) 100.73 2087 6,065.83 48.04 (7.25)

L

—

< Glferionsigs, of GEP. CHY & GAD
1

AR

* Eand«‘dﬂz? ard camprises of export bls disceunded which are considered to bo & ralural hedge against conaspending trada recahatios
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Tha sensieity of profit of 3455 to changes inthe archanga rales arizcs mairly from foregncurrancy denominated financat Instrsnanis

Rs.mlilicn}

USD sonaitivity
USD-INR - Inerease by 5% (March 31, 2026 - 5%)°
USD - INR - Decrease by 5% {March 31, 2020 - 5%)"

EURO sansftividy
EURD - INR - Increase by 4% (March 31, 2020 - 4%)°
EURQO « INR + Decrease by 4% {March 31, 2020 - 4% )

* Hokiing ak other variables constant

(&) Forward contrscts dosignated as hodges

The Company wses {oreign curency forward cortracts to hedge #s risks associated with foreign currency fluctuations relating to cerain firm

forecas!

highly

s (cash

fiow hedge) and fareigr cunrercy required ot the settiement date of pool of rade receivables in foreign curency (fair value hedge). The 1se of foreign curency forward cortracts is govemed by the
Comparyy's strategy approved by the Board of DirectorsfForelgn Exchangz Risk Managemert Committce, which provide principles on the use of such forward contmets consistent with the

Company's risk
{i) Cash Flow Hedga

it policy and pr

As at March 31, 2021
Followiog tables disclases profile of timing

of the neminal amount of fareign exchange forward contracts &

Particulars toss than 3 months 3to 6 Months & monthsto 1year Total
Faralgn Exchzngs Forward Contracts In Milia
{Highly Probable Forecast Sates) Amoupt in Milien {  Average Rate [Rs.) Ameunt in Mitfan Average Rate [Rs,) | Amount in Milliap | Avesags Rate {Rs.} Amount in Milion
Forward contracts {in WSD) 0.25 73.50] 121.39 76.60 239.75 76,65 361,39,
Forward contracts |in EURCH 1.85; 88.45 1.55] 88.88 - - 3.50]
forward centracts fin GBP} 0.60] 102,34 B.50] 103.2¢4 - - 1.26
As at March 3%, 2000
Following tables discloses profile of timing of the nominal zmaount of forelgn exchange forward contracis ©
Particulars Less than 3 suonths dto 6 Months 6 manths to 1 year Total
Foralgn Exchanga Forward Contracts Amount in Milion | Average Rate [Rs,) Amaunt in Milfion Averape Rate [As.) | Amount i Million | Averagze Rata [fis.) Amount in Million
Forward contracts. {in USD} 109.45, 7225 123.31 73,70 124.50 74.386) 417.36]
Forward cantracts (I EURD) 120 81.53] 0.50) 81.47 - - 1.80,
Forward contracts {in GBP) 0.75] 94.79 ©.35] 55,10 - - 1,10]
(i) Fair Value Hadgo
As at March 31, 2021
Folloviing tables dizcloses profile of timing of the nominat amount of forelgn forward (Rs_milion)
l._ March 31 2021 March 31 2000
Foreign Exchange Fonward Centracts
[Trade receivabls) Amournt in Miliion Average Rate {Rs.} Amount ia Million Averzge Rate |Rs.)
Forward conteacts {in USD)
All cantracts have Balance maturity of
less than 3 months 106,73 76.04) - -
Empact of hedging activities
Valuation Techniqua
The Comparny enters into dervative financial instnments with various courterparties, principally banks and financial institutions with investmert grade credit ratings. Foreign exchange forvard
cantracts are vakied using valuation techniques, which employs the use of market observable inputs. The most appled vafuation lechniquas inchad cash flow methed
Az at March 31, 2021
Disclosure of effeets of hedga accounting an financlal positions:
(Rs.mikion)
Neminal valiza Carrying amount of hedging instrumant Changae in fair hc:angl;tl" tha \r:lua:;
Pariculars (Foreign Currency in Hedging Ratio | valua of hadging ocgod am used as tha
Miion) - Instrsnant basis for racognizing
Assols Liabiiitios offectiveness
Cash fiow hedge
Forward conlracts {in USD) 36139 444,20 - i
Forward contracts {in EURC) 350 548 - k5 1619.21 {1,619.24)
Forward contracts {in GBP) 120 070 - i
{Rs.mikion}
Mominal vakie Carrying amount of hedging instrumant
Particufars {Foroign C y in| Hedging Ratio
Mitlion) Assols Liabilities
Fair valua hedga
Forvard contmcts (in USD) 106.73 26231 - 11
As at March 31, 2020
Disclosure of effacts of hedge accounting on finaneisl positians: {Rs.mifian}
. N Change in the valus of
Nominal value . Change in fair
Porticutars (Forulgn Cumrency in| Corming emount of hedging Instrument | ¢y patia | valus of hedging | Mo030d ftam usad as the
" basis for recegnizing
Miflon} instrumant effectivonsss
Assats LlabEities .
Forward eortracts (in iSD) 417.36 - (1,386.27}) 1
Forward cortracts (in EUROD) 1.80 . (a.02) 11 {1,231 16} 1,231.16
Forvward cortrmcts (in GBR) i1d - 050 11
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{Rs.mifion)

Amaount

Change in tha valua Hadge ctassifind fi Lino ier afactod in
March 31, 2021 of the hedging meffectivoness | 192 70T | statomant of profitand
Typa of hedga instrument racognized in cash flow hadging ss because of the
mocognized in OCI | profit and lozs rcsuar;'dn ::;;mﬁt raclassification
Cash flow hodge
Highty probabie forecast sales 161821 - 136,91 |Tevenue fiom cordracts
Highy probabia forecast sales T 29.16] - |Ctherincame
{Rs mifian)
Changas in the valus| Hadga mch‘z’:;“:'f Lina Ham affected in
March 31, 2020 of the bodaing insffoctiveness oo oM | o tetemant of proftt and
Type of hedge Instrumant recognized in c::eﬂ::ll:nig:;g sz bocause of tho
recognized in OCI | profit and loss and Ios': reclassification
Cash flow hodge
Highty probabla forecast sales -1231.16 - 1,208 ga [Fovene flom cortracts
Hlghly probable forecast sales - 4 08 - |Other Expenses

The Company's hedging policy aflows for effective hedga relationship to be established. Hedge eflecliveness is determined at the inception af the hedge rebatiorship, and tveugh perodic prospective effecliveness
assessments to ensure that an cconomic relationship exists betwaen hedge fem ard hedging Instrumert. The Company ises hypothetical derivaltive method to assess effectivenass,

Falt Value Hedgo

Gain anaceount of fair vakation of ferward cortracts to hedge pool of foreign currency trade receivabies recognised intha stalement of profit and loss is Rs. 262.31 Mikon (March 31, 2020: Nijj

Movement in cash flow hedging resarve

{Rs, mition)
[ Dorivativo instrumants Forward contracts
(§) Cash flow hedging resarve
As st Aprit 01, 2019 135,49
Add: Gain recogrised in other comprehensive income during the year {1.231.16)
Less: Amourts reclassified to profitor loss {1,204.68)
Less: Deferred Tax 72350
As ot March 31, 2020 -976.94
Add: Galn recogrised inother comprehensive income during the year 161921
Add: Amourts reclassified to profil or loss 136.91
Less: Deferred Tax (442.02)
As at March 31, 2021 33718

{D) Cash fiow and falr vatua interest rate risk

The Company is not exposed ta inlerest rale risk because funds are borrowed at fixed interest rales. The Company uses a mix of interest rate sensitive financiatinstruments to manage the Squidity ard fund requirements for s

day te day operatons,

{4) Interest rate risk exposure

The expasire of the Compsmy’s burrowing ta interest rate changes at the erd of the reporting period are as foliows:

Puaiticutars

As at

March 31, 2021
45

78.18

Total berrowings.

4.578.12

3,185.57

A3 atthe end of the reporting periad, the Company had NIL variable rate barrawing sensitivity analysis has not been camied o,

!
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Note 29 - Capital management

{a) Risk Management

The Company's objectives when managing capital is to safeguard continuity, maintain a streng credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business
and provide adequate retumn to shareholders through continuing growth, The Cempany's overall strategy remains unchanged from previous year.

The Company sets the amount of capital required on the basis of annual husiness and fong-term aperating plans which include capitai and ather strategic invastments.
The funding requirements are met throuigh a mixture of equity, internal fund generaticn and other short term borrowings.
For impact of Covid-19 on capitat management, refer note 40

The Company monitors capital on the basis of the net debt o equity ratio. The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.
The feflowing table summarizes the capital structure of the Company:

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Non-current borrowings {Refer Note below) 949.61 874.54
Current borrowings 3,628.57 216716
Less: cash and cash equivalents 727.4% 989.69
Net debt 3,850.69 2,052.00
Total equity 4,133.89 2,343.59
Gearing ratio 0.93 0.87

Note :

Non-current borrowings includes Fability component of compound financial instruments [Refer Nete 11 (a)]
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30 Contingent Liabilities:

Description on matters considered as contingent liabilities:
{Rs. million)

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
[a] Disputed Sales Tax Liabilities 1.04 1.20
[b] Income Tax Liabilities 178.84 184.00
{c] Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts 48.51 48.51

{i) It is not practicable to estimate the timing of cash outflows, if any, in respect of the above pending
resolution of the respective proceedings.

{ii) The Company does not expect any reimbursements in respect of the above contingent liabilities.
31 Leases
Company as lessee

The Company has lease contracts for varicus items of property and other equipment used in its
operations. Leases of property generally have lease terms between 1 to 2 years, while other
equipment generally have lease terms between 2 and 4 years. The Company's obligations
under its leases are secured by the lessor's title to the leased assets. Generally, the Company is
restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased assets and some contracts require the
Company {o maintain certain financial ratios. There are several lease confracts that include
extension and termination options and variable lease payments, which are further discussed
below.

The Company also has certain leases with lease terms of 12 months or less and leases with low
value. The Company applies the ‘short-term lease’ and 'lease of low-value assets’ recognition
exemptions for these leases.

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements
during the period:

(Rs. million)
Right to use assets
Particulars Commercial Property | Other Equipment's Total
As at April 1, 2019 69.69 7.60 77.29
Additions - 2.86 2.86
Lease modifications / adjustments - {(4.87) (4.67)
Depreciation expense (40.95) {1.79) (42.74)
As at March 31, 2020 28.74 4.00 32.74
Additions 343.34 - 343.34
Depreciation expense . {100.33) (2.02) {102.35)
As at March 31, 2021 271.75 1.98 273.73
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Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the year:

32

{Rs. million)
Lease liabilities
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
As at April 1, 2020 34.57 77.28
Additions 343.33 2.86
Lease modifications/ adjustments - (4.67)
Accretion of interest 32.03 8.20
Payments (118.358) (49.10)
As at March 31, 2021 291.58 34.57
Current lease liabilities 121.27 19.81
Non-Current lease liabilities 170.31 14.76
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities are disclosed in Note 28.
The effective interest rate for lease liabilities is 11%
The following are the amounts recognised in statement of profit and loss:
Rs. million)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Pepreciation expense of right-of-use assets 102.35 42,74
Interest expense on lease liabilities 32.03 8.20
Expense relating to shori-term leases and low 68.45 87.29
value assets (included in other expenses)
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 202.83 138.23

The Company had total cash outflows for leases of Rs.127.30 miliion in March 31, 2021(Rs.136.40
million in March 31, 2020). There are no non-cash additions to right-of-use assefs and lease
liabilities. There are no fufure cash outflows relating to leases that have not yet commenced.

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. These
options are negotiated by management to provide flexibility in managing the leased-asset porifolio
and align with the Company's business needs. Management exercises significant judgement in
determining whether these extension and termination options are reasonably certain to be
exercised.

Segment Information
(a) Information about Primary Business Segment

The Company's business has two divisions, Home Textile (which includes towels, bath robes, bath
rugs/ mats, area rugs, carpet, bedsheets, utility bedding and fashion bedding) and Flooring division
{which includes tiles ,Grass tiles bedding}. However, for the purpose of making decision about profit
or loss in the financial statements the chief operational decision maker monitors the combined
results of above mentioned divisions (i.e. as one segment only). Accordingly, no separate disclosure
if required as per Ind-AS 108 "operating Segments”.
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(b) Information about revenue from external customers and non-current assets in various
geographical areas:

{Rs. million)

Sr. No. | Particulars Geographical segments Total
Outiside India | Within India
1. Segment Revenue
Revenue from Operations 57,791.05 6,196.09 63,287.14
(52,866.08) {4,162.60) (57,028.68)
2. Carrying amount of assets by geographical location of assets
Segment assels® 869.19 316.31 1,185.50
{869.19) (64.64) (933.83)

Figures in brackets relate to previous year.
a) *Carrying amount of segment assets are Non-Current assefs excluding the tax assets,
Peferred Tax Assets and Financial Assets.

Notes:
b} The segment revenue in the geographical information considered for disclosure is as follows:

i. Revenue within India includes sales to customers located within india and earnings in India.
ii. Revenue outside India includes sales to customers located outside India, earning outside India
and exports benefit on sales made to customer located sutside India.

c) Segment Revenue and assets include the respective amounts identified to country of domicile
viz India and other countries viz outside India and amounts allocated on a reasonable basis.

d)Revenue from two customers amounted to Rs. 30,449.18 million (March 31, 2020: Rs
24,548.75 miliion)

33 Earnings in Foreign Currency

(Rs. million)
Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
{a) Revenue from Exports on FOB basis 52,650.86 45,763.20
Total 52,650.86 45,763.20

34 Expenditure in Foreign Currency {net, on accrual basis)
{Rs. million)

Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

(a) Travelling 0.64 59.17
(b) Sales Commission 533.19 731.39
{c) Professional Charges 98.73 60.17
{d) Claims, Markdown, Discounts and Rebates 1,809.92 2,199.00

{netted in Revenue from Operations)
{e) Advertisement and Sales Promotion 12.28 160.31
{N Royalty 127.77 109.32
{9) Others 47.85 39.63

Total 2,630.38 3,358.99
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35 Related Party Disclosures

(i Relationships

(a) | Enterprises where control
exists
Holding Company Welspun India Limited (WIL)

Ultirmate Parent

Welspun Group Master Trust (WGMT)

Subsidiary Companies

Welspun Mauritius Enterprises Limited (WMEL)

Welspun Holdings Private Limited, Cyprus (WHPL)

Welspun UK Limited (WUKL) (Held through CHTL)

CHT Holdings Limited (CHTHL) (Held through WHTUKL}

Welspun Home Textiles UK Limited (WHTUKL)
(Held through WHPL)

Welspun USA Inc., USA (WUSA)

Novelty Home Textiles SA de CV (NHTSC) (Held through
WMEL)

Christy Home Textiles Limited (CHTL)
(Held through CHTHL)

Christy 2004 Limited (CHT 2004) (Held through WUKL)

Christy Welspun GmbH (CWG) {Held through WUKL)

Christy UK Limited (CUKL} (Held through CHTL)

ER Kingsley (Textiles) Limited (ERK) (Held through CHTL)

Christy Lifestyle LLC, USA (CLL) (Held through WUKL)

Tilt Innovation Inc., USA (Tll) (Held through WUSA) (with
effect from January 22, 2019)

b} | Fellow Subsidiary Company | Welspun Flooring Limited (WFL)*
along with List of entities over | For Listing of parties, refer disclosure in Note 35(iii)
which key management
personnel or relatives of such
personnel exercise significant
influence or control and with
whom f{ransactions have taken
place during the year
c) | Key Management Personnel Name Nature of Relationship
Balkrishan Goenka Director & Chairman
Dipali Goenka Managing Director

Rajesh Mandawewala

Director

Arun Todarwal

Independent Director

Atul Desai Independent Director
K.H. Vishwanath Independent Director
Revathy Ashok independent Birector

Mukesh Khandelwal Chief Financial Officer (till

April 5, 2019y

Chief Financial Officer
(w.e.f. May 24, 2019y

Sandeep Kumar Garg

Nidhi Tanna Company Secretary

d) | Relatives of Key Managerial | Vanshika Goenka

Personnel

* related parties where fransactions have taken place during the year
** Data given in the disclosure note 35(iil) is up-to March 31, 2021

(i) Terms and conditions:

- All transactions were made on normal commercial terms and conditions and at market rates.
- All outstanding balances are unsecured and are payable in cash

WMEBAL )




T} GADAR O4) LF FOPNIUL I 02 § i 0 Lot jUncalza Oy T B 5 MUTARD) 4 10

d 2.2 sozussqe Pl FuRd ppaleq FOUISR 10§ EIMET] A4 §Y
Ao 2yt A BojGGEE SN BURLIKI By} mOFK) $)IUNGWY &
sjoxons b b e saandy ok snoparg

1oeH
- - - 3 - v - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - (TR
g B T 3 B g O B T B T T T 0 = T 5 g g B T - - - ) ] BajUa RN sreodon
- - - - - T - - - - G T . - T - - - CHNEEA MM RN :
o T T T 0 = T 0 0 0 B T T G T g T 0 0 T T SUEGs | Ghat TSR G 1 AR K] bErros
: 3 : v v = ¥ - - - b - - - v - (PO (EoxT)
R - - B 3 3 - - - - - - - - v . - - 3 - 05V E | BSOE ; B . SHE LRSI
- - - ST 1T EoiTH - - 160 - - (1) z - - - - (] - - 69 LA L
- - - m ot : - - B - - - - - - - = - - TaGEG BLSEE v - X)) SIS L BIRed 9ROl
- : : - - - = - y ro0) < ) CN LK [0 ] v eiel - v
0 T T T T = 0 - - [0 - L ) g - [ SY0BC - - T3 TS0 i S5t SH0 10 1N Samensoey ApEi L
- T T v B 5 - g T T ;i 3 B - - 3 0 - v R R
T T 0 o = T 0 T 0 0 T B 0 T T = = G T e STIRANE JELU0] NATR % BT RErd
T D - T T - - B T - T T T = . 0 T 5 T G T EEsal | -
- - - - - - - - - v - - - - N - - - - - Gy - [l ua penaae Jsaru SWpnw ) ussB SHE0dag) fud $OILRALY TG Y
wouefey Fuigoly
HEE T 5 T T T = : T = = 0 0 T T 0 5 B g g v T 0 - T T T
- T = T T 0 T T 0 B B 0 0 0 0 T T T 0 = g = = . t R O] BT,
FETalY] - - . 3 - 0 T = O o gy v T B v v - O 0 0 - - 0 B H v v |
v T T T 2 B T T . o o T T T T T 0 O = v 3 O 0 - T T ThGazTA v}, ol WA NG BRDdr |
- - - - B B - v = - : - - - - - - - = g - - - - - | [GEET) - -
B < T 0 0 5 5 - T 5 T 0 0 g g T g 5 = T B B g 5 - T 0 EETERBE S USo] Iian0f Xy RS
" T T v T = T B = B = 0 0 T T TN T = D T T ; B T g 0 T
SH¥EL - ) - 0 : - - - - - T T T T p - - - 5 - - B - - - TR L Giraiiiig oM ess AR aF0aRId Jo Cord Lo
D - - - fozor " |{snl el {ligol - - - B - - - . - - - - . - - - - < - - .
oL - ’ - . TED X B 30 - - - - - - - - - . . - - - - - - £i0.§ Bunia K03
iz ov feo ) FOL I () - : - - o) - - B - - - - : - - - - - - - - : : :
Sy Fiiy [T [TE] - T v Q Br'w : B z : 0 . - - < < - - : v - TOSSaR) P USTE BT
ez iz - - - < < - - - - - - - - 3 - v 7 - : z i) T - -
ToTh - - - - - - - - - - - . - - - - - - - - [EAY] - - - )
(B - - - S N - N - = < T B - - - - T T e -
Ei6zdy z - 3 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - T B %) - - - T30 DGy PO SUNOSHa O
[ - - - - - - - - - - - - < - . - - - : - - - -
EP - - - - - B - - - - . - - - - T N - o'y - S50 Eray
TREE T 5 N - g T T T T i T T T T f ¥ g < g = T T O o 0 iz
(9 E563) : . - - - . - B - - - - - - - 3 - - - - - - - - (GE) {bs £50))
o5 622 n T T T T A . n - - - ¥ = v T - - e N SsUda] jSUAAT 10 LG
i 062 91 7 T - T < B T K B v B : (EE) . P iG] - -
261991 - : N - - - - B - o560 61563 - oD a9y + 358 - - ToAe] Cupnaul) speog RS
T3] T - - z B v : {5 . - [¢22) k) : | (N v : (Vi) - -
[T - v - . < ¥ - . - 160 - - - : [I%7} : . it - - DILNGU] SUSREE USRS 13 DTN
[0, 0ae £ - B M v ¥ 4 - - - - - - - = = T B ~ B B
FEATIN) - : - B B : - - - - - - - - - : 3 - - - - [ - - - LI0CES e EOpNE] Gesuaon Bd30 PSS 1 owpng
ivees) g T T B B p T Y T 7 T B 0 0 toueey B T T G T T T T T = 0 0
 1Tan i - = - v T - - v 3 - v - 150z - . : - - - - - - - - CErIEy SIRa000 FUR SOSEApY S 0va {4 I WREdon |
JCaA, 81f; BUHNR SUG[ERSUESL;
fozozgoras s | pupupy | Pl ot srenpa
WioL Puacs wuey | Bimp | wasy veul soc byl UL L inon udig () AIR0L[ 0 W) Pokii § suonnios casdorg| P | prpoms | "' onepunog| ¥ n“wﬁ._ _“._.,HE._ u:ﬂw“; am R i il )’ T s UvInaNuvd
exlREn ppi |devpues | Awenon |euemisia | unaw 10 Fanedspss | oieapd | Aepeds iy | FOAS Haw [ unditom #edzoru3 :ﬂnﬂ%gu wtiotug |0 .;:!_mm: o Aman SHM A &
INELpAL | undsjepy undgipy b
wam swimag
h__q_...“_.._-uu:..._wu g e Kb ook By Bupnp e5eid USE] BARY SUG[IESLES tuedisos J—— Kugdian
Tviol ;-.v_ 1o -;.ﬁﬁz -l et FLEW A LUCLA YIIM FUR [IILUDZ 0 DIUENYUL |URDY | ubis e¥jsexe 1sUUDTIad YINs JO FeAlIR]e) 10 [UU0TIa ] JussdiTusyy Sey Yaiym Jano sespce|uy Buiplay
TISTEIY FUS-TE0X ST [TUE 6705E []) U] pUOHLSLU TOUTd PIIT|6. Yuas SUCIIIESUR S AU} BIE BUpADya (] 5t

STOZ 30 HOUVHI AIANT UYIA THE YO SINIWALYLS TVISHVHI OL SALOH

QZLWN SUNYHE TYEO01D NNd5T13M



WELSPUN GLOBAL BRANDS LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

36 Earnings per Share

Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Profit after Tax (A) (Rs. million) 475.87 414.45
Profit available for Equity Share holders 475.87 414.45
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 23,529,412 23,529,412
during the year {B)

Basic and Diluted earnings per share (A)/(B) (Rs.) 20.22 17.61
Nominal value of an equity share (Rs.) 10 10

37 In accordance with paragraph 4(a) of Ind AS 110 “Censolidated Financial Statements®, Welspun
Global Brands Limited has elected not to prepare consolidated financial statements and has
prepared only separate financial statements as defined in Ind AS 27 — Separate Financial
Statements. Disclosures required in accordance with Ind AS 27 by entities who have elected not to
prepare separate financial statements are; Details of Parent whose Ind AS compliant financial
statements have been produced for public use;

Name of the | Principal Place of | Country of | Address where consolidated statements are

Parent Company | Business Incorporation | available for use

Welspun India | Anjar, Vapi India Kamala Mills Compound, Senapati Bapat

Limited Mumbai Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai, Maharashtra
400013

Significant Investment in subsidiaries

Name of Subsidiary Principal Value  of | % Holding | Method used for
Place Investment accounting for
of (Millions} investment
Business

Welspun USA Inc. USA 281.97 66.90% At Cost

(281.97) (66.90%)
Welspun Holding Private Limited (Cyprus) | Cyprus 587,22 95.91% At Cost
(727.22) {95.91%)




WELSPUN GLOBAL BRANDS LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

38 Disclosure for Micro and Small Enterprises

39

40

41

(Rs. million)
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020

The principal amount and the interest due thereon
remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of

year
-Principal 128.59 33.20
~Interest 0.04 0.19

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of
Section 16 along with the amount of the payment
made to the supplier beyond the appointed day
during the year

-Principal 160.25 217.09
-Interest - -
The amount of interest due and payable for the

period of delay in making payment (which has been

paid beyond the appointed day during the year) but
without adding the interest specified

The amount of interest accrued and remaining 0.99 1.97
unpaid at the end of year

The above information and that given in Note 11 (c) — “Trade Payable" regarding micro and small
enterprises has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of
information available with the Company.

Estimation uncertainty relating to the global health pandemic on COVID-19

‘The Company has adopted measures o curb the spread of infection of COVID-19 in order to
protect the health of its employees and ensure business confinuity with minimal disruption including
remote working, maintaining social distancing, sanitization of work spaces etc. The Company's
operations, revenue and consequently profit during the year ended March 31, 2021 were impacted
due to COVID-19. The Company has considered the possible effects that may result from outbreak
of COVID-19 in the preparation of this financial results including the recoverability of carrying
amounts of financial and non-financial assets and liquidity assessment based on future cash flow
projections. In building the assumptions relating to the possible uncertainties in the global economic
conditions as at the date of approval of these financial results, the Company has used internal and

_external sources of information and expects that the carrying amount of the assets will be recovered.

The impact of the global health pandemic may be different from that estimated as at the date of
approval of these financial results.

Impairment loss recognized in investment in subsidiary:

During the previous year, considering the uncertain economic situation due to global pandemic,
management had revised its business forecast forinvestment made in subsidiaries and had
performed impairment assessment as required by tnd AS -36. Accordingly, for investment made in
one of the subsidiaries i.e. Welspun Holding Private Limited (Cyprus), the Company had determined
recoverable value of INR 587.22 million and had recognised an impairment loss of INR 140 million.
The company had determined the recoverable value of INR 587.22 million based on its Value in
Use. It had considered a discount rate of 10.25% to arrive at its value in use.

Standards issued but not effective up to the date of Financial Statements
There are no new standards that are notified, but not yet effective, upto the date of issuance of the
Company’s financial statements.




WELSPUN GLOBAL BRANDS LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

42 The figures for the corresponding previous year have been re-arranged / regrouped, wherever
necessary.

As per our report of even date

ForSRBC&COLLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountanis
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